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"When a society or a civilization perishes,
one condition can always be found, They forgot

where they came from."

Carl Sandburg
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Thomas Hamilton

Pioneer of Town of York

Some Ancestors and Descendants

As far as I can determine this Hamilton family
has never been studied or charted genealogically -
all of which has made the exercise great fun and a
most worthwhile project. The Hamiltons of Queenston
Heights, Kingston, Hamilton and Hawkesbury, have been
done and referred to constantly during the research

but this family is new territory for the researcher.

The family founder is the greatest puzzle of all
and his origin is as yet unknown. He was a fisherman
named Thomas Hamilton. The first references to him
come in the land grants of the U.E. Loyalists in
Digby and Sandy Cove, Nova Scotia, in 1783. He was
considered to be a Loyalist even though he was at the
time of the American Revolution an inhabitant of Sandy
Cove, engaged in a fishing business there in 1778. He
may have supplied fish to the British forces, in any
case, he and his sons were granted territory as
Loyalists. 1In the local histories of Annapolis and

Sandy Cove, by I.W. Wilson, M.K. and H.O. Bull and




2 G NATE S R T D L B S LT et e e e e o S AL AT e T e Y v

TeTh - "pybfic T Arctiives o Nova ‘Scotia: ** "“His" book "hasino i o - Te T ‘
bibliography but he had obviously read earlier histories of
Nova Scotia as well as books about the American Revolution  From Sandy Cove ;
and European history. Whenever he couid he gave a source .
for his information but often he recorded a tale heard in some ~ The Wi ks of
unnamed person's kitchen.®* Someone in Sandy Cove 10 N,,0 Seotion v' g e
doubt told him this story of the first settlers: A\

Mr. Thomas Hamilton and Mr. John Dickson, natives by MKBuM and 0.4
of Granville, Nova Scotia, having wandered down the Bult

northern Bay in search of the most promising location
for prosecuting their fishing business decided to
become founders of British tenure at Sandy Cove.
Consequently Mr. Hamilton with his partner and
three sons located near the shore on the farm lately
owned by Mr, Thomas Crowell. The other gentleman
took possession of one hundred acres on the western
side of the harbour. This occurred May 12, 1778.
Although they neglected to apply immediately for
grants, Mr. Botsford, agent for the Loyalists,
recommended they be included in the second township
grant which was cheerfully done.?
Qn & Scppp ad paper

The settlers at Granville near Annapolis had come from (1:, fin BE CERSA ,‘)

New England in the early 1760's to take up the good farms left “+or tax e

by the expulsion of the Acadians. Noone named Hamiltonor - Archibadd is liated in
Dickson is listed in the census of that community madein 1768 Fuvt Anne  fptry 4o
and 1770 Perhaps they were fishermen from Maine who, like ~ 8nasptis Reyel.

alsp

those~whosettled sailed north to find new * | 19l an M. Homi 1oy

{sAing grounds and, in the end, |bFOURNT their Tamilies and Eaq has huschald feT

sfayeo, 1Ny cieared land and buut cabins without the = 2
=0 : (TR AL 8
knowledge of local authorities and{bought what they could not bf;\» ""::’r :\ 5

in .

produce themselves by selling fish in New England. Tradition
says that when the Loyalists came to Sandy Covein 1783 to see
their grants they found clearings and log cabins on the shore.

te is correct then_the

~ Tater given grants of
erc not always in the place where they had first
settled. 2 ‘The Dickson family stayed\by the Cove but the,

Hamiltons moved to the Bay of _Fundfshore south-west of the
beach. The whole of Digby Neck had been granted toa group

of Halifax ‘officials in 1765 with certain conditions of

settlement, T hese were never fulfilled and the final grant was
not made, Ie&vj&ngge land free of encumbrance and available
0

for grantingNg/

" Mr. Thomas Hamilton, and Mr. -John Dickson, natives of Hister 1-5”3"" “‘\
Granville, Nova 3cotia, having wandered down the northern Bay / . :
in search of most promising location for prosecuting their fishing ol Annepelia S,
business, decided to become founders of British tenure at Saudfr Nils
Cove. Consequently, Mr. Hamilton, with his partner and three L& teen
» sons, located near the shore, on farm lately owned by Mr. Thonias
Crowell. The other gentleman took possession of one hundred
on western side of the harbour. This occurred May 12,
(1773% Although they neglected to apply immediately for Grants,
Mi. Botsford, Agent for the Loyalists, recommended they be
included in the second Township Grant, which was cheerfully
done. - Archibald, son of Thomas Hamilton, was allowed & com-
modious tract beside his father’s litetal apportionment.
il N o




Calnek his origin is disputed. Mr. Wilson believed him
to be a native of Granville, Nova Scotia, prior to 1778
when he appeared at Sandy Cove with his three grown sons
and his partner, John Dixon. The Bulls felt he could
have been a Cape Cod fisherman who had decided to stay
permanently, instead of commuting back and forth to Cape
Cod seasonally. Mr. Cutter, in his Massachusettes
Genealogies, said that he originated in Cambuslang
Parish in Westburn, Scotland, just south and east of
Glasgow, Scotland. Cutter was referring in his account
to Thomas' son, Archibald2 - however, if Westburn was

Archibald's native land it was also his father's.

I studied all possibilities and came to no definite
conclusions as to his origin. If he had been an native
of Granville at that time in histeory it would have meant
British military parentage because nearly all the white
people there were Acadians except for many British
military and a very few merchants. In order to probe
this possibility it was necessary to study early British
military records of those serving in Nova Scotia. Un=-
fortunately these records are kept in London, England
(Kew Gardens Public Record Office) and the War Office,
and they primarily include only officers. There were
three or four Hamilton males from whom Thomas could

have descended in early Annapolis Royal.
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GARRISON AT ANNAPOLIS ROYAL, NOVA SCOTIA.
‘ e Commissions renewed at St. James's, 8 Apr. 1715.0
ot e 5 Mem.—These four Compandies formed the nucleus Col. R: .
F"l _ Philipps's Regt. of Foot in Aug. 1717'.)f o Richard jK
COMPANIES,

Christopher Aldridge, Capt.
| John Jephson, Lieft. P
Thos. Button, Ensign.
Laurence Armstrong, Capt.
2. James Campbell, Ligeut. B
John Keating, Ensign.

* Dickson ASS. printed in R. A. Proceedings, Vol. xxviii, p. 439.

(I.
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Thos. Caulfield, Capt.

3 Joseph Beunett, Lieut.
James Erskine, Ensign.
John Williama, Capt.

}l' Edward Broadstrest, Lieut.
Thos. [sic] Hamilton, Ensign.

f>;>.~+o

GOVERNOR.
Col. Samuel Vetch..

CHAPLAIN,
John Harrison.

FORT MAJOR.
Fras. Spelman.

COMMISSARY OF STORES.
Pater Capon.

SURGEON.
Wm. Skeen.

SyuPPLEMENTARY COMMISSION.

Wm. Sherriff to be Commissary of Stores of War, in the room of Peter
Capon, St. James's, 16 July, 1715.a




Lt. Col. Otho Hamilton was not one of them. His
genealogy, as well as that of the Olivestob Hamiltons
(of which he was a member) has been done by Rev. A.E.W.
Eaton. 1In 1709, as an ensign, Otho came to Port Royal,
Nova Scotia, with the conquering British and New England
troops. He remained there and in Newfoundland nearly
fifty years until the final departure of the Fortieth
Regiment in 1763. Otho's elder son John had a son,
Thomas, but he was a generation too young to have been

this family's founder.

However, in Dalton's "King George I Army" at Kew
Gardens Public Record Office there is mentioned an
Ensign Thomas Hamilton re-commissioned at St. James,
April 8, 1715, to serve in Annapolis Royal, Nova Scotia.
He served in Captain John William's company replacing
Ensign Otho Hamilton who was in that compan;% The
previous year when Captain William's company swore
allegance to King George I in December, 1714, no
Hamilton name appeared but the following month an
Ensign Hamilton took the ocath. Whether he was Thomas
or Otho is not known. In any case, an Ensign Thomas
Hamilton was there at least until 1716 when he left the
comvany - maybe at the time of the formation of the

Fortieth Regiment. He may have joined the Fortieth

whose complete lists do not exist.¥%



Novae Scotios ﬂmh'nvefs _ij:
edi el BY Archibeld Mo Mechan fr B

From

woted
ACADIAN FRENOCH. ‘i

The Board having considered and advised npon the said

per, resolved that the said paper is insolent rebellious and

ghly disrespectful to His Majestgr's suthority and Govern-
ment, that His- Honor would therefore please to tender the
Uaths to the inhabitants, and in case of refusal to commit the
ring leaders to prison, whereupon His Honor desired the
three Deputies Abraham Bourg, Charles Landry and Guillaume
Bourgois to be admitted and having tendered them the QOaths,
severally, they refased to take them on any other terms thazn
those set forth in their answer; then Frauncis Richards who
Lad voluntarily taken the Oaths to His late Majesty, being
called in, he likewise refused to take them to his present
Majesty, as did four or five more; the rest of the inhabitants
having withdrawn themselves without coming to the fort or
secing the Lieut. Governor.

Ordered that the three Deputies Abraham Bourg, Charles
Landry, and Guillaume Bourgois as also Francis Richards, v
for their contempt and disrespect to His Majesty’s Govern-
ment and anthority, be committed to rison, and that the
other inhabitants for having refused the Oaths to His Majesty,
shall be debarred from fishing upon the British Coasts, till His

Majesty’s further pleasure shall be known concerning them,
pursuant to the 13th Article of Governor Philipps? 1nstruc-
» » » » »

tions. *
L. ARMSTRONG,

Lient. Govr.
Ormo Haumron * Sec.

_ Met at the same place according to yesterdays minnte on
Sunday, the 17th of September 1727.

fort, signed and delivered in, as their final resolution to take
no Osths but upon their own terms. _

Taken into consideration the aforesaid Deputies behaviour
in assembling the jnhabitants the day before the time, and
above two miles from the place appointed and resplved that
Charles Landry, Guillaume Bourgois and Francis Richard VY
for their said offénce, and Tikowise for refasne the oath of
fidelity to His Majesty which waas duly tendered ther, be re-
manded to prison, laid in irons, and there remain till His
Majesty’s pleasure shall be known concerning them, and

at Abrabam Bourg, in consideration of his great age,
shall have leave to retire out of this His Majesty’s Province,
according to his desire and promise by the first opportunity,
leaving his effects behind him. * * * *

L. ARMSTRONG

Lieut. Govr.
Orro Haxrrten Sec;
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Another Hamilton in early Annapolis was mentioned on
film B1021, p. 43, at the National Archives in Ottawa.
"In Boston on November 23, 1713, from Annapolis was sert
to Governor Hunter a packet of letters carried by William
Hamilton". This could have been the same First Lt.
William Hamilton of Earl of Portmore's Regiment of Foot

who had served with Otho under Captain Richard Philips at

Annapolis. On June 30, 1714, William is replaced by a

Lt. John Hamilton. Did this Lt. John Hamilton (1714)
serve long at Annapolis and is he the John in the

following notes?

Our third Hamilteon was a "John". In searching

Acadian Records I found the following entry in St.

Jean Baptiste Parish Records in Port Roval. "Jean
Hamilton male christened July 2, 1716, son of Jean
Hamilton / Anglais / Marie". Ottawa, Halifax and
Morman records list it in this fashion. However, at
the University of Southwestern Louisianna in Lafayette
the records are more complete, i.e., "Jean Hamilton,
two years and one month old son of Jean Hamilton and
Marie Hamilton (English). Sponsors Francois Richard
and Catherine Tiboudeau wife of Guillaume Bourgeois”.
Only a few other English names are on this parish list

and francization of those names is common. Eleven years
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after this baptism both Mr. Richard and Mr. Bourgeois
were in trouble.l Reverend Eaton believed that John
Hamilton in Annapolis was Otho's first cousin (and
contemporary). He states "From references to their
children (of John Hamilton and Catherine Arbuthnot of
the Edinburgh Olivestob Hamiltons) obtained from abroad
it seems quite certain that it was their second son John,
a first cousin of Major Otho's, who was appointed naval
officer and collector of the port of Annapolis in 1734.
This naval officer remained many years in Nova Scotia.
In 1736 he was a member of the ruling council and among
many gentlemen receiving land grants at Minas, Chignecto,
and Norwich. 1In 1749 his home was destroyed at the seige

of Annapolis and he made a claim for reimbursement.

These Hamilton men were of the right generation to
have been our Thomas' father. Thomas also had con-—-
temporaries in Annapolis bearing his surname. There
was a John and Otho Jr., both sons of Otho Sr., and
both officers in the Fortieth Regiment. In 1752, when
they were all very young, Thomasland Otho Jr., were
both in Captain Fotheringham's company in Halifax where
the Fortieth was stationed at that time. Ed Handfield,
of Annapolis, whose father was the Col. of the
Fortieth Regiment, served as a private along with

| .
Private Thomas Hamlltonab

i, Netel p o
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This period was difficult to verify for many reasons.

Ten pages of marriages in the Annapolis Township Book
(MG 4 Vol. 5, reel 1) bearing surnames beginning with
"H" have disappeared from the early records. In early
census results British subjects and military personnel
were not often included and the works were not complete
at best. The 1770 Annapolis census was a compilation

of various lists and not infallible.

M.K. Bull and O0.H. Bull suggest that our Thomas
of Sandy Cove might have been a Cape Cod fisherman. I
cannot prove or disprove this. I spent two years
researching that name on the Eastern seaboard with my
likeliest candidate, sonless. Thomas' neighbours and
friends at Sandy Cove were New Englanders who came to

his territory as U.E. loyalists but he pre-dated them

by many years. My findings on the Cape Cod Hamiltons

I include in note 2.(3&&)

I believe that this family was British because its
early descendants were literate, military participants,
and traditional British in the use of family seals on
wills and deeds, etc. They were also Church of England
whereas the settlers along the Bay of Fundy were descend-
ants from Baptists and Quakers who had formerly sought
refuge (from Puritan persecution) in Rhode Island and

Nantucket. Cape Cod people used biblical names as did
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the Quakers. This family used old Scottish names.

Cutter, in his Massachusettes genealogies, mentions
Thomaé' grandson John who went to liwve at Blue Hill,
Maine and Cranberry Island in Maine. He says John's3
people originated in Westburn, Scotland and Cambuslang
Parish (south east of Glasgow by about four miles). 1In
the Register House at Edinburgh I was not able to verify

this as the early records were too faint to read.
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First Generation - Thomasl; The Founder

According to Wilson Thomas was a
native of Granville, Nova Scotia, a town across the
river from Annapolis Royal:. In order to accomodate
later family birth dates, he must have been born circa
1728. We know that his eldest son, Archibaldz, became
a father for the first time in 1769 according to Bible
recordsB. These photocopied records are in the notes.
1728 saw few English inhabitants in this section of the

country.

The only evidence of Thomas in the army is a list
of soldiers in Captain Fotheringham's company in 1752.
This was Col. Hopson's Regiment at Halifax. Along with

Private Thomas was Lt, Otho Jr. and Private EA4d.

Handfield, all natives of Annapolis. The Cape Cod

Hamiltons had a Lt. Thomas Hamilton in Captain Jabez

Snow's company stationed at Annapolis from 1759 until
1762 while the regular army fought elsewhere. I studied
this Lt. Thomas Hamilton for a long time because he was
a likely candidate but vital statistics proved him to
be sonless. He was also a member of the militia, not
the regular army. What Private Thomas Hamilton did

between 1752 in Halifax and 1778 when he appeared at
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Sandy Cove is not evident except that he had at least

three sons, Archibald, from whom this family descends,
Henry and John. All three sons, as well as their father,
received U.E. Loyalist land grants through Botsford at
Sandy Cove but not on the cove where fisherman should

be! Because the land where they had settled in 1778 at
Sandy Cove was not legally theirs (for they had only
squatter's rights) they were given nearby grants. To

do this they must have fulfilled the requirements for

Loyalist status.

Did Thomas, the family founder, have a brother
John? On August 21, 1767, the governor of Nova Scotia
granted land on Deer Island ‘in Passamaquoddy Bay to
ex-officers of the British force at Annapolis Royal.

A John Hamilton was among them. By the dates of com-
missions, we know he was not the son of Otho, Sr., nor
was he the naval officer (Otho's cousin) who collected
duties at the port. He was probably the John Hamilton
who was a guarter master in 1754, an ensign in 1755
and a lieutenant in 1766 (and a possible son of the
custom's officer). The descendants of this John
Hamilton on Deer Island are present in the "Lord"
genealogy when a John and Charlotte Hamilton have
daughters Isabella (1838) and Rebecca (1828) who marry

William and Alexander Lord, respectively, in 1848.
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lived in Trout Cove; John Edison, Jomes Ellis Charles [ergnson .

who lived where Dirby Catholic Chapel standa on southensicn
Sarrerof King and Prince William Streets Willinin Fitzgeraid,
Stephien Fountain, Gilbert Fowler, Joseph Gidney, William Green
who resided in Town of Digby; Obedint(}rifﬁn, Thonius Haire,

whose home wus near Grand Joggin; Luke Hall, Arclli_guld
Hamilton, Conrad Hundlespiker, now spellerl Hands iker, Francis
Hurms, Peter Harris, Mayiard HarrisC Jumes Hurring?{n y, Fred-
, erick W. Hecht, John Hill, Zacharizsh Hill, arles Hinmun,
who lived on Light House Roul ':)Geurge'Hol]ingshea\d, Anthony
Hollugshead, John_tlocton, reler Huggefor. Major Thommns

hu./ ‘{"——t—r'{;




Second Generation - Archibal‘d2 Hamilton

While little is known about Thomas‘except through
land grants and differing local histories. Archibalda
yields more information and documentary evidence. He
first appeared on the film of the Fort Anne papers on
a small ragged sheet of paper containing about a dozen
names(between Isaiah Corbett and Uriah Clark) This was
a part of the 1770 census or poll tax list for Annapolis.
&t this time he had his first son, Thomas3 and was

married to Marv s

They must have lived on land adjoining Lt. John
Hamilton (Otho, Sr.'s eldest son) because nine years
later, in 1779, Archibald? sold buildings and land in
Annapolis on St. Anthony Street to Ebenezer Worthylake
for fifty pounds for "all the three gquarters undivided
part of a certain messuage, or tenement or house and
ground upon which it stands." All deeds I refer to are
on 1 B reel 697, P.A.N.S. (Public Archives of Nova
Scotia) and this particular 1779 deed is on page 4704.
This property was bordered both north and south by
that of Thomas Williams who had obtained it from
Captain John Hamilton (of Otho, Sr.) a few years prior
to this. There is no deed or grant to show where
Archibald obtained this property whether from afore-

said Captain John Hamilton or from his own father, Thomas'.
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Grant map of Sandy Cove photographed and drawn by Dr.
Ronald Morchouse from the map accompanying Billey Saunder's
grant,

\

9.~ The children of John Dickson or Dixon reccived lots 35
, and 20 in the 1788 grant. Thomas Hamilton and his

3 sons Archibald, John and Henry teceived Tots 44, 45,
and 46, situated South of 16t 26 in the 1802 grant though

they had first settled on the Cove.
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However, there is a 1746 deed5 to show that
Captain John, obtained his land (with no house) from
his grandfather John Adams, Captain John Hamilton
built a house and lived there until he left for Ireland
with the Fortieth Regiment. I believe this house (or
part of it) was the William's house, fhere the Royal
Bank now stands on St. George St.)

After Archibald sold most of his property on St.
Anthony Street, in 1779, he joined his father and brothers
John and Henry in establishing, at Sandy Cove, a fishing
business along with their partner, John Dixon. Years
later, after their fishing cove property was alloted to
other U.E. Loyalists from New England, and after they
received land not conducive to fishing, Archibald be-
came a farmer and alsp owner of a lot and home in Digby.
From the land deeds it seemed that Archibald and his
wife Mary lived in Annapolis, Digby and Sandy Cove
during their lives. The lot in Digby was on the corner
of Water Street; I believe where the post office now
stands. Archibald made his will® on December 8, 1793
and it was probated in April 1794 with his son Henry

and wife Mary as executors.

Original copy of Will in notes #6. This is a
deciphered text of it.

In the name of God Amen. I Archibald
Hamilton of Sandy Cove in the Township of Digby,
County of Annapolis and Province of Nova Scotia,
farmer, being very sick and weak in body, but of
perfect mind and memory, thanks be given unto
God, calling unto mind the mortality of my body,

I
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and knowing that it is appointed for all men
once to die do make and ordain this my last
will and testament, that is to say principally
and first of all I give and recommend my soul
into the hands of Almighty God that gave it,
and my body I recommend to the earth, to be
buried in decent christian burial, at the
direction of my executors nothing doubting
but at the general resurrection, I shall re-
ceive the same again by the might power of
God and as touching unto estate
wherewith it has pleased God to bless me in
this life, I give, devise(?) and disperse(?)
of the same in the following manner and form.

First I give and bequeath to Mary, my
dearly beloved wife, the lot number thirty-
two in the Block letter M in Sandy Cove afore-
said with southwest end of lot number thirty-
three in the same place after the following
divisions, are taken from said lots numbers
thirty-two and thirty-three until my son
James becomes of age, together with the sale
and full manager of the stock except the oxen,
which she is to have the use of, for the term
of five years provided my said wife Mary
remains a widow, otherwise one-third of my
estate during her life, then the abovementioned
lots with the management of the stock and the
oxen for the abovementioned term of five years
to devolve to my sons James and Jeremiah equally,
and after the expiration of the above gaid term
of five years I give and begueath the oxen to
my son Archibald.

I give and bequeath to my daughter, Mary,
twenty acres in front of lot number thirty-
three next to Sandy Cove. I also give and
bequeath to my son Henry, thirty acres of
said lot numbers thirty-three (next adjoining
the twenty acres bequeathed my daughter Mary)
together with the first lot adjoining the
vacant lands towards the Bay of Fundy laid
out sixty rods in width. I likewise give

and begueath to my son Archibald the next lot
sixty rods wide running from the line of lot
thirty-two towards the Bay of Fundy. I give
and bequeath to my son John the next lot (ad-
joining to that left my son Archibald) sixty
rods wide running from line of the said lot
number thirty-two towards the Bay of Fundy.
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398 GEOGRAPHY AND HISTCRY

WATER STREET. Y.

o i cocner
v 1. Archibald Hamilton, a dwelling, (1ot on 4
2. James *H. Holdsworth, a dwelling, by purchase.
3 & 4 Ebenezer Strcet, n dwelling, by purchase.
5. Cuph Janes Bazeley, a dwelling, by purchase.
6 & 7. Henry Rutherford, a two story and other dwelling, by
urchase. .
8& 9. Andrew Snodgrass, a two story and other dwelling, by
. purchase,
10. Peter Totten, a dwelling, by purchase,
11. Thomas W. W. Beavens, by purchase, June 10th, 1785,
12 & 13. Andrew Snodgrass, by purchase, June 10th, 1785,

14 & 15. Henry Rutherford, by purchase, June 10th, 1785.
16. No name,
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I also allow that the lot of land laying on the
north side of Gulliver's Hole Road between the lot
number one of the Town of Digby will be divided
equally betwixt my son Thomas and daughters
Catherine and Rosanna, and that it shall not be
in the power of my daughter Catherine, her heirs,
executors, administrators or assigns to sell or
disperse of part of said lot out of my family.

I also order that the sum of twenty pounds
current money of the Province of Nova Scotia,

be paid to my daughter Rosanna upon the first
day of May in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred out of the produce of the stock
now left on my farm, after paying all my debts
and funeral expenses and, lastly, I do con-
stitute, make, and ordain my beloved wife and
son Henry, executors of this my last will and
testament. And I do hereby utterly disallow,
evokes and disanull all and every other former
Testaments, wills, legacies, bequeaths and
execution by me in any ways before named, willed
and bequeathed; ratifying and confirming this
and no other to be my last will and testament.
In witness whereof I have hereunto let my hand
and seal, this eighth day of December in the
year of our Lord one thousand seven hundred

and ninety-three. )

Signed, sealed, published and
pronounced and declared by
the said Archibald Hamilton

as his last will and testament Archibald
in the presence of us, who in Hamilton
his presence, and in the Seal

presence of each other have
hereunto subscribed our names.

Our names: John Stewart 3
John Morehouse ]
Chloe Wescoat 3

Annapclis Royal Bd April 1794

The within will being presented for probate
by Mary Hamilton and Henry Hamilton, executors
therein named, personally appeared the said
John Stewart and John Morehouse submitting
witnesses to said will, and make oath on the
Holy of Almighty God that they saw
the within mentioned Archibald Hamilton, sign
and seal and heard him publish and declare the




b6
The Monaton Loty _Pg’z‘-‘il

. 77&{;7& FKond Thansoet tms F,‘J} -iey

Prdvale, . ok ]
probably uencad P’amuj Archibad d,

1:;—4 ewa cTharn genenhis Lsme o it

bt bt ot e Guw Fote, Whan we

meT G-n.y v Rea Morenouse his Sdmmer (1981)
he said  Ws grend father Toid Tim haw
his ancestors Tound \&3 G wmn e
The sShome When ﬁne’ arrived im \TY3,

Thease Lcating were The Ham s iten v

Dixen VirsT hep.“-__;g




the within will as his last will and
testament and that when he so did he was of sound
disposing mind and memory to these best
discerning, and, that they subscribed thelir

names as witness to the said will at the
Testator's request and in his presence and in
the presence of each other.

Sworn to before me the day John Stewart
and year above written. John Morehouse

Joseph Winniett
Judge

This will names his children Thomas,3 Henry,3 Arc_hibald,3

.James,3 Jeremiah,3 John,3 Catherine,3 Mary,3 and
Rosanna3 but not Jene3 {Jean) who is mentioned only

in the Marston letters in the notes.'7 By 1794, at the
time of Archibald's death, he owned lots 32, 33, 34,
and 44, 45, 46 at Sandy Cove and lot 1 letter Y on
Water Street in Digby, as well as a large property
north of Gulliver's Hole Road between lot 1 and Digby
Town. I believe the Sandy Cove lots he or his father
had bought back from U.E. Loyalists because these lots

had been previously taken from them.

*
All of the Hamilton land transactions7the in the
Digby deeds at the P.A.N.S. in vols. 693, 694, 1A and
1B of 697, and 32 and 3B of 698. For Archibald and

Mary there are only three transactions. The only c¢ne




not already mentioned is the 1785 purchase of the
south-west side of Sandy Cove for eight pounds from

Fred Herndorf of Digby.

While Archibald is the direct ancestor I would
like to include here the little that is known about
his brothers H"enry2 and John2. Henry may have gone to
New Brunswick and may have married Margaret Martin.
He did receive lot 45 in the Cove but there is no
record of his selling land or having children there.
Christened on September 18, 1810, were two sons of a
Henry Hamilton, named Alfred and James. I believe
these sons belonged to Henry3 - son of Archibaldz.
John was granted lot 46 in the Cove and on May 8, 1798,
he sold a lot in the town of New Edinburgh, County of
Annapolis to Captain John Taylor. He also lived at
Sisaboo when some of his four children were baptized
in the Anglican Church. The children were John
Margeson, Peter, Alice and Hannah, christened in 1786,
1787, 1790 and . The only land sale for John not
already noted was in 1804 to James Van Velzer for 20francs
in exchange for acreage on the Cove on the Fundy side.
From deeds we know that Johnis2 wife was named Mary and

could not write, although John could.

(%]
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Appendix [

Stephen Fountain’s customers in Sandy Cove, {788-1815, with
the year of the first and last entry in each account. (Two or
three small accounts are on the fly leaf with indecipherable

names).
Addington, William 1790-1814
Archibald, Jesse 1794-1796
John 1794-1809
Baley, Capt. William 1792-1809
Bates, Nathanicl 1792
Balcomb, Abel 1812
Blackford, Martin 1789-1808
" Brown, Mikel 1808-1813
Bryant, William 1792
Cameron, John 1796
Campbell, Samuel 1811
Carmon, William 1804-1810
Canty, John 1811
Coggin, John 1791-1811
Andrew 1805-1811
Henry 1795-1796
Colwell, John 1791-1811

Cornwell, Capt, Jacob 1801-1806
Jacob Jr. 1809

Dakin, John 1799
Thomas 1790-1799
Capt, 1812
Denton, Joseph 1789-1815
William 1812
Dingee, Arthur 1791
Douset, Peter Jr. 1808
Eldridge, Matthew 1802-1809
Gidney, Joseph 1802-1804 i
, John 1789-1799 o184
Graham, Mires 1790-1807 5
Hamilton, Henry o W

:‘““““%(— | Archibald
J7 1! 124
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Blackford build a boat, made a *“goose neck” for Bll‘ley
Saunders’ boat, rudder irons for Matthew Eldridgeand a “ring |
bolt and thimble”-forAlexander Hamilton's boat, A small
mast was set up when the wind was right for sailing and taken
down and used for a sitting rail when the boat was rowed.
These boats were too small to go through the swift eddies of

Petit or Grand Passage;




In Sandy Cove on the carpentry lists of clients of
Stephen Fountain he names an Alexander Hamilton (in
addition to Archibald? and Henry2) for whom he has
done boat repairs. He could have been another son of
Thomasl, We know of Archibald,2 Henry2 and John2 only
because of their land grants. A son who was a fisher-
man or who for some reason did not apply for land could
go unrecorded. This Alexander could have been another

son - he bears a family name and a family trade, fisher-

man..,
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Thoma‘s3 - Third Generation

From the Marston letters and Bible records con-
tained in the notes, we learn a great deal about Thomas3

of York. He married in Granville, Nova Scotia, Anne

Gilliatt, on July 25, 1794, the Rev. Archibald P.

Ingles officiating. Thomas was twenty-four years, two
months and twenty-seven days old at the time while his
bride was only nineteen years, eleven months and fifteen
davs old. This Bible was in Horse Prairie, Montana, in
the possession of Thomas Henry Hamiltdi/iaaﬁaphew of
Thomas3 of York by his father Archibald®.

Thomas Henf? copied these Bible pages which he then
sent upon request to Col. R.B, Hamilton of Toronto, in
1898. The "Trixie" mentioned in his ]_etter8 to Col.
R.B. Hamilton was the colonel's daughter Beatrice, who

105
married Stephen Leacock, the Canadian humourist.(p )

Thomas3 and Anne were married in Granville Ferry,
Nova Scotia, in the Anglican parish.9 Theitk EiEst
child, William Archibalg ; was born and baptized there

in June 1795.g

In the following vear they left for
Upper Canada, first going to Port Dover, in Woodhouse,
Township, of Norfolk County on Lake Erie near Niagara

peninsula. Niagara Falls was then the capital of

Upper Canada and it was here that he applied for his

first land grant. He was to receive 600 acres but
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The corner we approach after passing the Market Square was
occupied by an inn with a sign-board sustained on a high post
inserted at the outer edge of the footpath in country roadside
fashion. This was Hamilton’s, or the White Swan. It was here,
we believe, or in an adjoining house, that a travelling citizen of
the United States, in passession of a collection of stuffed birds
and similar objects, endeavoured at ap early period to establish
a kind of Natural History Museum, To the collection here was
once rashly added figures in wax of General Jackson and some
other United States notabilities, all in grand costume. Several of
these were one night abstracted from the Museum by some
over-patriotic youths and suspended by the neck from the limbs
of one of the large trees that overlooked the harbour.,

Just beyond was the Steamboat Hotel, long known as Ulick
Howard’s, remarkable for the spirited delineation of a steam-
Packet of vast dimensions extending the whaole length of the
building just over the upper verandah of the hotel. In 1828

“White Suian 0w
Front west of

MoKel stvl-m .




owing to illness he could not appear for the grant and

ultimately did not receive that land.

By 1818 he is in evidenc¢e on an early map of
York.10 This town lot (1 acre) between Bay and Yonge
on Market Street [(now Wellington Street) was probably
used as a residence with a blacksmith shop at the back
of the lot because in his first grant application he
asked for a lot to establish a blacksmith business. In
various land petitions he calls himself a blacksmith,
innkeeper, farmer, and finally coroner of York. In
Scadding's "Toronto of 014", on page 48, he mentions
Hamilton's "White Swan Inn", on Front Street, just past
the old market, where he believed the first Natiocnal

History Museum was established by an American.

In 1804 and 1805, he is overseer of the highways
for the Town of York. He was elected, along with
Eliphalet Hale, in 1804 and John Cameron, in 1805.

In that same yvear he was giveh lot 3 on the north side
of Market Street - a large lot between Archibald
Thompson (1799) and Richard Ferguson (1816). In the
following years 1806 and 1807, he is elected overseer
of highways and fences viewer for the east part of the
Town of York to the Don Bridge. At this point he is
awarded lot 23 concession four in the township of

Yiork

Fé
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TORONTO COMMERCIAL DIRECTORY

Hall Jokn, Groeery, &e. March-ut
Iall Miw, Milliner, &e, i Ceauy's,
Hall William, Carpouter, ‘Teronly.s
Mlall & Leek, Cardle & Soap makers,Palace.it Buy.iliorn
IMalken Licut., Aido-de.Camy to tha Lieur. Goyvernor
1Ldpin John, Laborer, March-st
}lmillou Alezander, Looking.zlars manufaeturer, Carece
il Gilder, 118 Ring-ut
2 Uemilion George, Laborer, Lol.#t cast
¢ 1lamilion Janes, Camelion Tuvera,Churcli-ut
> Hamilion William, Coot & Shoemaker, Clincliat
Llumilion 8, 3, Mansion Houss Hoicl. Newpaie.m
5?[lnmillon Thomas, Carpenter, Coutton's Uloek, Ly-st
)Ilumillon Thomas Q., Cnrpenter, Macauly lane
Ulumilion James, Land Ageat, King-ol went
~llamilton Wm, lshorer, opp, Bishop's build s Nowgute-o
Hamilion R, smull store, opp. Uishop's buildge, Nuwgate-a|
Hanmell Joho, Boot & Sligemuker, Yongo.at
linnaven Jemes, Laburer, Hosputal-m west
landy Pus'k. Auct. & Uroesry stors, 44 Lotomt
Iland U. Laberer, Duchoss-at
[lanioy Jemes, Gardener, Yongo.at road
Iannals William, Wheelwright, Yonge.s
llasagan Mem, Murch.at
Harbron Gearge, stone-mason, Mareh.sl
Ifardy Chaa., ciorh a1 Beatiy's, 177 King.ut
Harke Nobart, Mason, Peiorat
Harkos Jobm, smmil grocary, 37 Lol-a

177 Kingat
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{1lweheson J., City Hotel, Front.sl

aiehirson John, Llacksmith, Dukg.st

Husehinsan widow, Dukc.st

Itutehinson William, bricklayer & matoun, Alareh. st

Hutehinaon Julu, aailor, Market-at

Hutchinson 1hainas, carer, 1osyital.a

Tutwn Jamey, lubarer, Broad lane, York.at

Iuwien Willinte, carpeiner, Tiroad lane, York.st

Juckes William, Caker, 64 King-st

Jackes Willium, grocery store, ¥ Lot.at

Juckson Francis, imilor, Yark-u

Jacksan ITenry, wateh maken New.at

Jacques Jehn, cabinet makar, 223 King.

Jminea Nobert. earpenter, Lot.st cast

Jenict widow, Marcl.st

James Rober, drover, oapital-st

James John, wicain vavw mills, ‘Taveru, Kiv|g:|uu raad

Juesnn I:‘..AS Altomey General, 04 Newgate-at isthiop’y

aldingy

Jaincson Wilkiam, Doulton's block, Lot.st

Jamigaan Jamuy, ool and shoomakar, 220 King.st

Jaress W Bl uhenlt of the [Home District, useidule
Yongo-ut rond

Jurvia Stephen, Usiver Tlack Rod, Roseilyle, Yonge-st, v

Tarvia 8, 1, elurk ¢rown in chancery, &, Lot-of east

Jeffrrcy's Acndray, Taronie.sl

Jeubin Willlam, carpeater, Yonzo-st road

Jessunn Hleney, hamt pod shoaesaio . o0 :
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Thomas stood bond on February 29, 1804 {(at York)

for william Marsh and Sarah Montgomery. He also stood
bond ten vears later for Thomas Young and Mary Budreau
of York on May 31, 1814. 1In the next seven years, on
August 20th, he stood bond for William Parker and

Jane Kerr of Albion Township. These services may be
part of the services rendered by merchants or inn-

keepers.

In the "Gazette" on November 11, 1807, Thomas is
mentioned in Mr., Jackson's adverti;ement for hats which
are "continuallv kept at the store of Mr. Thomas
Hamilton in York". Thereby we can add to his wvarious

occupations, that of storekeeper.—("-"-“"ﬁ Kﬂsf‘(’.e"‘fk)

In June of this same year the Home District school
was opened with Dr. Stuart as teacher and here Thomas3
paid tuitions to have his sons educated, William
Archibald and Thomas Gilbert being the second and
third on the enrollment list. A month later {Robert)

Wilson and Alexander {Howe), their younger brothers,

began.

From April 1809 until April 1810, Thomas was
appointed deputy sheriff of York at 15&% 75 and 6d. At
this point, when Joseph B. Abbot decided to inaugurate

a music school, Thomas offered to accept the subscrip-

tions.



Thomas attempted politics. 1In "Town of York
1793-1815" by Edith Firth, on page 252, she encloses
Mr. Playter's diary page for June 12, 1812 in which it
is revealed that Thomas and Joseph Shepard tossed to
decide who would be the candidate against Mr. Ridout
in the election that year. Shepard won the toss but
lost the election. In Edith Firth's introduction she
states:

The main issue in the election of June, 1812,

was Brock's request for the repeal of the

Habeas Corpus Act because of the imminence

of war. This had been refused by the previous
House of Assembly. Joseph Shepard was the no-
repeal candidate in York, having won a toss-up
with an opposition rival, Thomas Hamilton (H-23).
This method of choosing a candidate was resented
by Hamilton's supporters, and the government
candidate, Thomas Ridout, was successful.

o s a

12th (June 1812) ... We all went to Town after
Breakfast to the Election - Mr. Hudson had given
up and became active. for Mr. Ridout. Hamilton
and Shepard tossed up for their standing, it fell
to the latter and Hamilton became warmly his
friend tho' the Electors, who ware Hamiltons
friends was so much offended at his Tossing them
away as they termed it that many of them voted
for Mr. Ridout who run a Majority of 79 at the
close of the Poll for the day.

Playter's Diary page from Edith Firth's "Town
of York".

George Ridout's account of the election differs from
the others.
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POLITICAL FERMENT F33 George Ridout to T.G.
Ridout, Quebec (P.A.0., Ridout Papers)

York 25th. June 1812

»-. Among my other news I must not omit letting
you know that Father is a Member of Parliament
for the East riding of the City of York and
Simcoe. He was returned by a Majority of 142
against Sheppard the only candidate who opposed
him as Hamilton, the morning of the Election,
resigned his interest in favour of Mr. Sheppard.
His heart failed him when he saw Father's friends
to the amount of 150 turning Leache's corner,
huzzaing etcwith their flags flying etc and he
in the meanwhile surrounded by no more than ten
or twelve of his adherents. Only six of the old
Members are returned - consequently the remainder
are new, who will compose a veryv respectable
House - John McDonell is one of them - he was
returned for Glengarry. Our Election here lasted
three days and has cost us between 4 and 500
dollars - but we must not mind it as Father now
stands a very fair chance for the Speakership -
indeed it commonly thought to be the case -
General Brock is much pleased with his appoint-
ment. We had a famous electioneering dinner
after the Polls closed consisting of most of the
Gentlemen in York ...

From Edith Firth's "Town of York" 179 - 1815.
Four years after George Ridout wrote this letter, which
is not accurate (see preceding clippings) he lost an
election in May to Peter Robinson and received thereby

a consoling letter from a Ridout family member,

Politically it would seem that Thomaéswould have
been a rebel sympathizer both because of his relation-
ship with Joseph Shepard and the marriages of his

s as
daughters. ;;homas died six years before the rebellion
and Sheppard only a few months before: however,

Joseph Shepard's sons, Michael and Thomas, were active

in the rebellion, made bullets for rebels, were cap-

2l




i Caroline Hamilton married into the MacIntosh
family on June 27, 1825. Her husband Charles was
Captain of the steamer Coburg in 1834 when he died
aboard his ship at Prescott on August 21, 1834 of
cholera. His brother Capt. James Fredeceased him
by 12 days, also of cholera and only a short time
after his marriage, Capt. Charles 1left Caroline with
five small children. The three brothers Charles,
Robert and John Jr. all had lived side by side on
Yonge numbers 86, 84 & 78 respectively. Caroline,
two years previously had lost to cholera her brother
Horatio Nelson, her sister-in-law Catherine (Stewart)
McIntosh the wife o0of John McIntosh Jr. M.P.P. and
a nephew a small son of Capt. Robert McIntosh who
took the place of Capt. John when the latter retired
from the lakes to be a Member of Parliament and become

a real estate investor.

When John's first wife died he was 1left with
3 small children - then he married the sister of Wm.
Lyon MacKenzie's wife. This had political implications.
Charles was the secretary to Wm Lyon MacKenzie's reform
movement until he, Charles, died before the rebellion.
John Jr. who had built the Sun Hotel sold it to Thomas
Elliott who may have been related to Francis Hamilton's
husband, Wm. Elliott. This hotel was called Rebel's
Corner - [Yonge & Queen(Dundas) ]

because the Reformers had their meetings there.

Although John MacIntosh Jr. was on the committee
which decided to rebel and he was active in the city
even 1in December 1837 - he was never arrested probably
because he was then an elected representative, Thos.
Elliott was arrested, as was Robert McKay (brother
in-law of Rosanna Hamilton). The latter left for

Rochester N.Y. where he started a store.

A3.d
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, and to York
y from
steamer

e Home District School and served
After the War he and his brothers owned a schooner

represented the 4th Riding of York in the Assembl

His brother Charles (d.

1834) was captain of the

olera.

5TTohn Mcintosh (1796-1853) was the eldest son of Jobhn Mcinto
in the War of 1812

1830}, a blacksmith who came to Canada from Scotland in 1801

in 1803. The vounser John was educated at th

Fm“To%nviYM“ ﬁjfd;'ﬂn Fleth

called the Brothers. He
Cebourg; he died of ch

1834 to 1841.

tured and imprisoned. It was in Joseph's house where

Col. Anthoney Van Egmond was seized, later to die in
prison because of his age 6f 67 and of the cold damp
conditions (conducive to pneumonia). Michael and

Thomas Shepard were confined in Fort Henry at Kingston
where they escaped (to Rochester in New York State) with
Montgomery and Edward Kennedy. Wilson Hamilton? also
went to Rochester, N.Y.

Thomas'3 daughter, Carocline Maria, married Charles
McIntoch at St. James Cathedral on the corner of Queen
Street and Church Street on January 27, 1825 - witnessed
by her brother William Archibald and Isabel e
caroline and her husband had witnessed the following
vear the wedding of John McIntoch (the eldest son of
John McIntoch, Sr.) and Catherine Stewart on January
27, 1826. -The three brothers John, Charles and James
owned and operated the ship "The Broéthezs" and later
Charles and James had a 500 ton steamship "Coburg"
built,on which Charles was captain. It ran between
Prescott and the head of the lake. Later Charles
became treasurer for William Lyon MacKenzie, being
connected by family since his brother John McIntoch, Jr.,
was a brother-in-law of MacKenzi;f Charles however,

, died of cholera in 1834 - three years prior to the
Rebellion. Later John McIntoch, Jr. represented the

4th Riding of York in the Assembly from 1834-1841.

The MacIntosh ships were: The Three Brothers,

The Superior, The Eunice and The Coburg.



7These hanged were Doon, Perley, Lyna. Bedford. Clarke, and Canninghsm,
Details of the executions, a full list of the prisoners and their disposition, Doan's last
lettor to his wife, and the address prepared by Perley to deliver {rom the scafold are
given in appendix 0. Tifuny, the only prisoner acquiited, waa thought 1m3ane.

9t least one odicer, Colonel W. Elliot, wns dismissed from the service for de-
nouncing Prince's conduct. See [inperial Blue Books, XII, No. 108, and Lyom, 6
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Jobn Loss hinl oileetoan

Elliort's Tavern, Queen awxl Yonge Streets, Toronto
Rnown as the rebel corner’ hecause Reform neetings were held there

, " iy 7. Melit
dtre fomidy of *Flligtps Tawern « famsnly

tTrial of Dr. Morrison. M_P.P., for High Treuson, ar Toronto. on Wednesday.
April 24, 1838 (Toronto. 1838), pp. 2-3. testimony of John Elliott and Robert McKay.
There is disagreement about the date of this meeting, but most evidence suggests the
end of QOctober. For a complete discussion of the date. see Stagg. “The Yonge Street
Rebellion, "pp. 40-2. Those known to have been at the meeting are W.L. Mackenzie,
Dr. T.D. Mormrison. John Elliott, John Doel, John Mclniosh. Robert McKay, John
Armstrong, Timothy Parsons, Thomas Armstrong, and John | Mills.
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WAR DEPARTMENT
THE ADJUTANT GENERAL'S OFFICE
WASHINGTON:

IN REFLY

rerza o Ao Geo 20143 (11-6-23)CRD ¥Nowmper 13, 1323.

¥r. Hanry C. Haznilton,
Barrister,
’ 40 vells Straet
Toronto, ca.nada.a.

Dear Sir:

In response to your letter of the 6th instant, in which
you requesat the Civil War records of Captain George A. koKay and
his brother Prederick McFay sald to have served from the State of
Ohlo, 1 have the honor to inform you as follows:

The recorda of this office show that George A. MoEay was
' These men onrolled April 22, 1861, at Cleveland, Ohio, and waa mustered into
K serviee April 29, 1851, at the same place, as a Trivate of Company
G""’" '”[‘" { 4, 7th Ohlo Volunteer Infantry, to aerve three monthe. He reenlist-
ofred AMKAL' o8 June 19, 1861, for the three year service and was mustered in
June 21, 1861 at Camp Denison, Ohio, as a sergeant of the sams com-

Wi Fgeaes pany and regiment; was promoted to lst sergeant, Amril 30, 1862;

bam ' tton s promoted to 2nd Lieuntenant November 7, 1862; promoted to 1at Lieu~-

Son g tenant June 1, 1863; and to Captain Ma.rch 18, 1864. He was mster—
- ed out and honora.bly discharged the service with the company aa a

wo HE»  @aptain July 6, 1864, at Cleveland, Ohio. The records alsc show

Custns thet he was wounded in battle at Ringzold, Ueorgis, November 27, 1863.

Tl ppsia The rescords show that Frederick A. MoEay was enrolled April

winr G Krbalit 53 1861, at Cleveland, Ohlo, and was mustered into service April 29,

NY ,,rﬁ.,u-hﬂnw 1861 at the same plase, as a private of Company 4, 7th Ohlo In.fa.ntry, , }
to serve thrse months. He was mustered out and honorably dliacharged
the sarvica with the company August 22, 1861, at Columbus, Ohio, a
private. No further rescord of him has been :found

Very truly yours,

4




Another of Thomas' dauchters, Fanny (Frances Gore},
married in the Presbyterian Church, William Elliott.
He may have been a son of Thomas Elliott, the proprietor
of the "Sun Hotel", corner of Dundas and Yonge Streets
{The Rebel's Corner}. This hotel was built by John
MacIntonsh, Jr. (brother-in-law of William Lyon
MacKenzie) and brother-in-lawof Caroline Hamilton:
Frances Hamilton was probably related, through her
husband William Elliott, to the proprietor of said

Rebel's Corner "Sun Hotel™.

Whatever were the sympathies of Thomas and his
family he was appointed coroner on December 27th, 1815,
a4 position he held until his death at 62 on November
24, 1831. His wife, Anne, predeceased him on June 7,
1828 at the age of 54. Her tombstone is in the
vestibule of St. James' Anglican Church on K;na Street
Fest in Toronto. It was Thomas who was the coroner
reporting the dual between John Ridout and Samuel P.
Jarvis.

from "Town of York" 1815-1834 by Edith Firth.

G3 VERDICT OF CORONER'S JURY ON JOHN RIDOUT'’S

DEATH (S8.P. Jarvis, To the Public; a Contra-
diction of the Libel, 1828, pp. 6-7)

An inquisition indented and taken for our
Sovereign Lord the King, at York in the
County of Vork, and Home district, of the
Province of Upper Canada, the twelfth day
of July, one thousand eight hundred an
seventeen, before me, Thomas Hamilton,
Coroner, of our said Lord the King, for

a2 4
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for said District, on view of the body of

John Ridout, then and there lying dead, upon
the ocath of Thomas Stoyell and fellow jurors,
good and lawful men of said District, being
duly sworn and charged to enguire for our
Sovereign Lord the King when, where, and by
what means the said John Ridout came to his
death, do on their oaths say, that the said
John Ridout and one Samuel P. Jarvis, 4did dis-
agree and for some time did gquarrel, until at
length they the Said John Ridout and the said
Samuel P. Jarvis did challenge each other to
end their dispute by fighting, and that the
said Samuel P. Jarvis not having the fear of
God before his eves, but moved and seduced by
the instigation of the Devil, on the twelfth
day of July, in the vear aforesaid, with force
and arms, in a field commonly called Elmsley
Field, in the Townshio of York aforesaid, did
make an assault, and that the said Samuel P.
Jarvis with a certain pistol of the value of

10 shillings, charged with gunpowder, and a
leaden bullet, which he then and there held in
his right hand, to and against the body of him,
the said John Ridout, did then and there shoot
off and discharge, by means whereof, he the
said Samuel P. Jarvis, feloniously, wilfully,
and of his malice aforethought, did then and
there give unto him the said John Ridout, with
the leaden bullet aforesaid, so as aforesaid
shot off, and discharged out of the pistol afore-
said, by force of the gunpowder aforesaid, in
and upon the right should of him the said John
Ridout, one mortal wound penetrating the shoulder,
neck, and jugular vein from thence to the wind
pipe of him the said John Ridout, of which
mortal wound, he the said John Ridout, then and
there instantly died, and so the jurors afore-
said, on their ocath aforesaid, do say, that the
said Samuel P. Jarvis, him the said John Ridout,
in the manner and form aforesaid feloniously,
wilfully, and of his malice aforethought, did
kill and murder against the peace of our Lord
the King, his Crown and Dignity.

And the jurors aforesaid, upon their cath afore-
said, do say that Jas. E. Small and Henry J. Boulton;
both of the same place, gentlemen, at the time of
the doing and committing of the murder aforesaid,
feloniouslv were present, abetting aiding, assist-
ing, and maintaining the said Samuel P. Jarvis,
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I3 REGIMENTAL ORDERS BY [ JEUT. COLONEL CHEWETT'
COMMANDING 3rD REGIMENT Yorg MILITIA

[PAC,, Upper Canadga Sundries]

York, 5h. September 1812.

In Consequence of the Flank Companies of )
Garrison of York under the Command of Maj

1 e to do Duty in the
Garrison until further Orders, 4
Ist. Captain Denison  2nd. Captain Ridout  '3pq, Captain Hamilton -Co.!,l s, Yot Lo
Lt. Endicott Lt. Kendrick Lieut. Playter
Ensn.. McArthurit Ensn. Brooks Ensn. Jarvis
3 Serjeants 3 Serjeants 3 Serjeants
42 Rank & file 42 Rank & file 42 Rank & file
. [15 TEerMS oF CAPITULATION OF YORK

[T.P.L., York, Papers relating to the Capitulation]

Terms of Capitulation entered into on the 27th April one thousand-eight
hundred and thirteen for the surrender of the Town of York in Upper
Canada to the Army and Navy of the United States unaer the command
of Major General Dearborn and Commodore Chauncey,

That the Troops Regular and Militia at this Post and the Naval
officers and Seamen shail be surrendered Prisoners of War, The Troops
Regular and Militia to ground their arms immediately on Parade, and
the Naval officers and Seamen be immediately surrendered.

That ail Public Stores Naval & Military shall be immediately given up,
to the Commanding Officers of the Army and Navy of the United States,

That all Private Property shall be guaranteed to the Citizens of the Town
of York.

F YORK AND THE WAR OF 1812 297

That one Lieutenant Colonel One Major, thirteen Captains, nine

Lieutenants, Eleven Exsigns, & one Quarter Master, one Deputy Adju-
tant General—of the Militia, namely

1 Lt. Coll. Chewett Lieutenants, John H. Schultz3?
1 Major W Allan 2 Georpe Mustard®
1 Captain John Willson 3 Barnet Vanderburgh?®
\ ” Joha Button3t 4 Robert Stanton
' 3 " Peter Robinson 5 George Ridout
” Reuben Richardson?* 6 William Jarvis
4 ”  Johm Arnold 7tEdward McMahon*®
5 2 James Fenwick?? 8 John Willson
6 " James Mustard 9 Ely Playter
7 ”  Duncan Cameron Ensigns 1 Andrew Thomson.
8 " David Thomson 2 Ared Smalley*!
9 ”  John Robinson 3 Donald McArthur 2
10 i Samuel Ridout 4 William Smith
>l = Thomas Hamilton 5 Andrew Mercer
12 v John Burns3+ 6 James Chewettt2
13 " William Jarviess 7 George Kuck*?
8 Edward Thompson -
Quarter Master |. Charles Baynes?® 9 Charles Denison

10 George Denison




to kill and slay the said John Ridout, in manner
aforesaid, against the peace of our said Lord the
King, his Crown and Dignity; to which the Coroner
as well as the jurors aforesaid have hereto set
their hands and seals the day and vear above
mentioned.

(Signed) Thomas Hamilton, Coroner,

(Signed) Thos. Stoyell, Foreman, and others

Thomas is summarized in a footnote on page 261 of
"The Town of York 1815-1834" as follows "Thomas Hamilton
(1770-1835?) was born in Nova Scotia. He settled first
in U.C. at Port Dover moving to York about 1795. He
kept a store and tavern in York, another store on Yonge
Street and a small boat which ran between York and
Niagara. He was appointed coroner on bDecember 27,

1815".

Thomas had a military career as well. In Nova
Scotia he had been an officer in the militia; later
he became a captain at York in the War of 1812. In
defending York he was wounded and taken prisoner for
only a few hours. Most of his land grants preceded his
1812 military action. As a Mason he gave addresses on
“temperance". In reviewing his life one gets the
picture of a very ambitious, capable and industrious
man. He is the third generation (Canadian) ancestor
of this family as well as the oldest child of Archibald®
and Mary whose children spanned many years. Thereby,

when Thomas3 married and left Nova Scotia, some

¢
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brothers were merely toddlers. He probably apprentised
as a blacksmith in Granville while the rest of the family
fished at Sandy Cove. When he left for Upper Canada as
a young adult, after his father died, I do not think he

was well known to the vounger family members.

A few words about the Gilliatt family are in order
here. While their familv had a genealogy ready for
publication it was not helpful in this endeavour.
Anne's father, William Gilliatt, a Yorkshire English
farmer, came to Granville in 1774 with his wife,
Rebecca Appleby. Their birthdates were 1738 and 1743

respectively.

Anyone wishing to read just the bare bones
ancestry should skip the following accounts of Thomas“3
brothers and sisters and proceed to Sydney Smith

Hamilton4 - the fourth generation.
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T present Village Hall. In 1818 when Hen i is
grant to Thomas West Crowell he made exception of “ten feet

square roradjacent to the grave of Archi ilton, father
of Henry™ Sérvices continued to be held in houses and
marriages and baptisms often took place in Digby as the
Trinity Parish records testify.
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Additional Third Generation Members

Thomas'3 oldest brother was Henry3 who lived most
of his life in Sandy Cove with his parents and family.
His two youngest brothers, James3 and Jeremiah3 lived
with Henrv3 for some time after the death of their
father. Two vears after Archibald2 died, Mary, his wife,
married Daniel Van Velzor and went to live in South
Lubec, Maine. This may account for James, Jeremiah,
John, Mary and Jean all going to live there eventually
and for the two youngest boys living with their older
brother for a while. Henrv was the only child to act
as executor, along with his mother, and he left behind
many deeds of sale to verify his location. There are
only two sons on records for Henry3 and his wife Mary:
an Alfred4 and Jam.es4 both baptized in 1810 at Sandy
Cove; both of whom I believe went to Upper Canada. All
his deeds are summarized in the notesll but one is of
particular interest. In his 1818 sale to Thomas West

Crowell, he reserved the sguare footage on which his

father, Archibald, was buriedll. I photoed the only
private cemetery at Sandy Cove. It consisted of head-
stones and footstones of flat rock placed upright.
This is near the water on lot 34 or 35 near the o©ld

oX¥en trail which had been used to carry sea weed and

fish entrails to fertilize the fields. BSocme of these
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: (2 This family for centurieshas
: HAMILTON been one of the most distin-
i guished in Scotland and Eng-
dand, and closely related to Royalty in both
icountries. Before 1300 the family was estab-
ilished in Scotland in Lanarkshire, Renfrew-
tshire and Ayrshire, and has been numerous
cever since. The name is a place name of Nor-
‘man origin. The family in Scotland possesses
‘the titles of the dukedom of Hamilton (and
iof Chatelherault in France); marquisates of
:Clydesdale and Hamilton; earldoms of Arm,
;Haddington, Lanark, Melrose, Orkney, Rothes,
‘Ruglen; viscountcy of Kirkwall; lordships of
Aberbrothwick, Abercorn, Binning. Byres,
:Haliburton, Hamilton, Kilpatrick, Machanshire,
Mountcastie. Paisley, Polmount, Riccarton ;
baronies of ‘Bargeny, Belhaven and Stenton.
The Lanarkshire family, whose seat was in
Westburn, and from wlhom the Ainerican immi-
grant mentioned below is said to have sprung,
bore these arms:
ermine. within a border counter point of the
second and first. Crest: A hand grasping a
lance in bend proper. Motto: “Et Arma et
Virtus.” lany families of this name emi-
rated to Ireland and settled in Ulster in the
.counties of Tyrone, Antrim and Londonderry.
! Among the settlers of Nova Scotia were a
number of Hamiltons from Scotland and the
‘north of Ireland and at least one branch of the
family from Maine. The similarity of names
'indicates near relationship. Robert Hamilton,
immigrant. who founded the family of this
sutmame in Colchester county. had a son Arch-
dbald.f 5 wigiC VT e
¥(1) Archibald Hafniltom, probably the immi-
igrant. settled in Digby, Nova Scotia. about the
lime of the American revolution. %%~
Y (II) John, son of Archibald Hamilton, was
born at Digby, Nova Scotia. in 1783. He came
to the Cranberry Isles in Maine when a young
man. He married Eunice Gilley, who died
!;‘August 13. 1874, aged eighty-eight years, four
fmonths. He died April 28. 1855. ~ Children:
{Thomas. Eunice, Daniel, William. John, George.
{Jeremiah. and perhaps others.
it {III) Thomas, son of John Hamilton, was
born in the Cranberry Isies about 1810, and
‘died in 18g1. He moved from there to Blue
Fill. He lived also at Braoklin, Maine, for-
‘merly Sedgwick. He was a farmer. He mar-
‘ied Susan Carter, who died April 9, 1881,
‘daughter of John Carter. Children: 1. James,
‘born September 5, 1828 2. Alexander, Au-
gust 12. '830. 1. Beniamin. Sentember 24,
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Adelaide. 8. Henry €., May 1z, 1845, men-
tioned below. 9. Sidney. 10. Frederick. 11.
Ruby.

(IV) Henry C.. son of Thomas Hamilton,
was born at Blue Hill, Maine, May 12, 1845.
and was educated in the public schools of
Brooklin. Maine, and there he settled and fol-
lowed farming throughout his active life. He
married Eva G. Bayard, born August 22, 1847,
died May 23, 1907, daughter of Hezekiah C.
Bayard. Children: 1. Harry E., born July
18, 1869, mentioned below. 2. Flod B., De-
cember 8, 1882, resides at Brooklin, Maine.

(V) Harry Edward, son of Henry C. Hamil-
ton, was born in Brooklin, Maine, July 18,
1860. He attended the public schools of his
native town and prepared for college at Hebron
Academy. graduating from Colby College at
Waterville, Maine. in the class of 18g6. He
joined Colby Chapter of Delta Epsilon fra-
ternity. During the following five years he
taught school in Everett, Massachusetts. The
1ollowing two years he was manager of a retail
shoe store at Bellows Falls, Vermont, and in
June. 1903. became a partner in the firm of
Hamilton & Butterfield, dealers in hoots and
shoes, at No. 68 Main street. Greenfield, Mass-
achusetts. His partner is O. R. Butterfield.
Their business flourished, and in January 5,
t905. the firm opened another store at No. 461
Main street, Athol. Massachusetts. Both enter-
prises are very successful. lr. Hamilton is
a menber of the Second Congregational Church.
of Greenfield: Granite Lodge, Free and Ac-
cepted asons. of West Paris, Maine: Frank-
lin Chapter. Royal Arch Masons: Arcana
Chapter, Order of the Eastern Star: Connecti-
cut Valley Commandery, Knights Templar. He
married. March 31, 1897, Frances Dunham, of
West Paris. Maine. born January 10, 1872,
daughter of Samuel W. and Rachel A. Dun-
ham. Children: 1. Charlotte D., born July g,
1808. 2. Catherine F., born September 29,
I9o2. 3. Donald B.. born Jnly 2. 1007. 4.
Richard A.. born April 12, 1909.

(V1ID) Lorerzo Dow Nick-

NICKERSON erson, son of Phineas (q.
v.} and Mary Stoart

(Hurd) Nickerson. was horn in Harwich,
Massachusetts, about 1840. In th: record of
his marriage he is designated a mariner. [le
married, in Harwich. April 20, 1870. Emineline
Sears. born in Dennis, Massachusetts, Septem-
ber 2. 1842, daughter of Sylvanus and Phebe
{ Berrv) Sears. Her grandparents were Ed-
e This raaa i Dot G A -Q. hs-
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graves were short enough to be childrens® - about seven

people in all. The whole beautiful area is returning

to its natural state,

After the 1818 sale, Henry3 went to Ontario to live
near his sister Rosanna3 but he was guite o0ld to make
such a move. He still ownedsome of his former propertv

from Thomas West Crowell in 1822, since he still held a

mortgage. Capt. T.W. Crowell drowned at sea the following
year.

Another brother of Thomas® was John® who is in-
cluded in Cutter's "Genealogy of Massachusettes". He
went to Blue Hill, Maine and Cranberry Isles where he
married Eunice Gilley and fathered nine children. This
genealogy is dealt with elsewherelzm John3 was born in
Digby in 1783 and died April 28, 1855. Eunice died at

88, on August 13, 1874.

Of the two youngest brothers, James3 was a black-
smith in Digby and Jeremiah a voeman. After their
mother, a widow, remarried, they lived with their older
brother, Henry3; then went to South Lubec, Maine, as
young adults, Their mother lived in South Lubec with
her second husband, Daniel Van Velzor. Descendants of
Jeremiah3 who went to California were responsible for

the research that led to the Marston letters. Descend-

ants of James.3 went to Montana.




There were four daughters of Archibaldz. Jane3
(not mentioned in the will) apparently lived in Lubec,
Maine, She may have married a man named Knight.
Rosanna“ with four children lived in Ontario near
Henry about 100 miles east of Toronto. In the Marston
letters she is referred to as Hannah. The daughter
Mary I know nothing about, since I believe it was this
widowed mother Marv who wed Daniel Van Velzor in Digby
on April 14, 1796 and not the daughter Mary. Catherine
is mentioned in the will. She may have married a

McGregor.

The last brother of Thomas3 was Archibald3 who was
born in Annapolis in 1780. His first wife was Magdalene
Bolzar (Israel) and his second was Maryv Charlotte of
New Brunswick. Archibald3 lived in many places judging
by the deeds at PANS: Sandy Cove, Grand Passage, Long
Island and Freeport, all along Digby Neck, One of these
deeds is signed by his wife "Lancy" which must have been
a nickname because at that date his wife was Magdalene.
Names, locations and relationships indicate that this
is the correct Archibald dfspite the name "Lancy" in-
stead of Magdalene. This family moved to Whitby,
Ontario. Thos. Henry Hamilt;n ,fgon, of Archibald3 went

to Montana. The Bible in notes is his.
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The children of Thomas3 not mentioned as grantees

are Frances Gore4, Fozetta Luecea4 and Euretta Anna4.

The naming of all Thomas' children is interesting. The
eldest, William Archibald4 was named after her and his
father respectively, Alexander Howe, after the M.P.P.
for Digby County, Horatio Nelson after the British
Admiral, Robert Wilson and Thomas Gilbert after natives
of Digby and Annapolis, the latter was his contemporary
in Granville who died while still a very young man,
Frances Gore ramed for the Lt. Governor of Upper Canada
and Sidney Smith either after an English lord who
visited Nova Scotia or a ship or a doctor in the Home
District who was on Yonge Street and who delivered

babies among other medical chores.

The girls' names are more difficult to understand.
The names Caroline Maria, Rosanna Luecea and Euretta
Anna are not family names, but Frances could be the
Francis Gore referred to above. Subseguent to this

third generation all the above girl's names became

popular in the family.
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Stoney HayILToN is descended from a family of U. E. Loyalists. His
V7 . grandfuther, Thomas Hamilton, after serving through the Revolutionary

%88

War, scttled in Nova Scotia with his family. The parents of our subject,
Themas and Ann Hamilton, left Nova Scotia and settled at Port Dover,

Upper Canada, upon wild land, which they
Yenrs; Thomas, a brother of our subject, b

cleared and resided upon several
eing the first white child born in

that neighbourhood. While living at Port Dover a journey of fifteen miles
had frequently to be made to grind a grist of corn, while flour was procured
fom Chippewa,  In 1795 Mr. Hamilton removed to York, and purchased
twu aeres of land on the north-east corner of King and George Streets,
where he built a house, which became the family residence for a number

ol years. During the War of 1812 he
same house, and shortly
Hotel on Market Street. During the earl
tesidence in York he purchased a small

carrying passengers to and from Niagara.
toers,

and participated in the defence of York.

opened a general store in the’

afterwards built the Hamilton Hotel and Ship -

y days of senior Mr. Hamilton's
schooner, and was engaged in
He belonged to the York volun-

After its capitulation the

| American soldiers discovered his red coat hanging in his house, and were
about to take him Prisoner, when, through the intercession of some of the

Amecrican off cers,
United Counties,

and also served a aum
He dicd at the

age of sixty.five,

schools of the place ;
lakes,

The first vessel he commanded
after which he owned in succession the
the Rose, the Isqbelia and the A4lliance.

he was liberated. He afterwards became Coroner of the

ber of years as Deputy-Sheriff.

L Sidney was the youngest of a family of
“ten children, born in York, February 2nd, 1811,

He attended the early

after the death of his father he began sailing on the

was the schooner Wood Duck,
Commerce, the William Gamble,
With the latter he was engaged

in "‘“'_p‘”ti“g merchandise ‘between Halifax and Chicago. In 1864, in
:Nnectmn with his son Robert, he established another dock in Toronto,
Bewn as Hamilton's Wharf, and is now engaged in the same busi-
nesy At the George Street Elevator. During the Rebellion of 1837 he
\ >'onged to the old fre brigade, and was on duty at the Don Bridge. In
olitics he has always ‘been a pronounced Reformer, and in religion a

60 (Biographical Notices. &%) 4 Towniz )
member of the Zion Congregational Church. In 1837 he married Anp
Coulthard, by whom he had eleven children (eight sons and three daughters),
of whom four are now living. Margaret married William Evans, of St.
Catharines ; Robert is in business with his father ; Elizabeth married John
Adams, Assistant Inspector for the Bank of Toronto ; Henry, a barrister,
is now practising law at Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.
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Fourth Generation - Sidnev Smith4 Hamilton

The fourth generation ancestor of this family was
Sidney Smith who was born in 1811 at York, the youngest
son of Thomas3 and Anne. He was baptized at St. James
Cathedral by Bishop Strachan on June 7, 1812. His god-
parents were Thomas Deary and Sarah Deary. Thomas
Deary bought Thomas Hamilton's "White Swan Inn" in 1807
in partnership with John Campbell. The following year
Mr. Deary left the partnershin to become a bookkeeper

and left Mr. Campbell with the Inn.

In the Toronto Commercial Directory for 1836-37,
Sidney Smith Hamilton is listed as an innkeeper at the
Mansion House Hotel, Newgate Street (Adelaide). Since
the original Mansion House Hotel was on King Street near
Caroline Street (Sherbourne) this must be a different
hotel bearing the same name. In addition, the old
Mansion House Hotel was burned down in 1827 by an
arsonist. In S.S. Hamilton's land petition he called
himself an innkeeper. Later he was a ship's captain
in Toronto Harbour owning ships, wharves and river pro-
perty+ In the Ontario Archives under Biographies there
is a short note saying "Sidney Smith Hamilton, U.E.
Collingwood Township 1836". This should be investi-
gated because I was never aware of his being anywhere

but in a Toronto location. The Hamilton wharves shown
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A3

on the 1878 atlas map are slightly east of Yonge Street
and are not to be confused with that of Henry Hamilton

in earlier maps.

To Sidney and Ann Coulthard were born many children,
only five of whom lived, namely, Pobert Baldwin? born
1847, Henry Coulthard,5 born 1858, Isabella Euretta,5
and Elizabeth5 who married John Adams of Toronto and had
sons. Also a daughtef*ﬁarried C. Lount or G. Lount and
is buried with baby Sidney Lount in S.S. Hamilton's

cemetery plots.

Because of his sister Caroline's and Frances' rebel
affiliations and since a Lount mother and child are
buried in his estate cemetery I suspect he had rebel

sympathies despite his wealth and associations.

Judging from the internment in lots 133 and 134
section F estate of Sidney Smith Hamilton, 1856 was a
vear in which this family suffered great losses.
Isabella Euretta, his daughter, died in March at 15
years, 6 months. On May 13, 1856, just two months
later, a child aged twelve days also died. Two months
later Horatio Hamilton, a babv one month and twenty
days old died on July ll. He may have been a nephew
of Sidney Smith Hamilton4 or the son of a brother or

nephew. Horatio Nelson Hamilton, who also died very young,
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Ref. Yo« 5568,

!

PUBLIC ARCHIVES OF CANADA

Ottawa, 27 December 1923,

Henry C. Hamllton, Eaq.,
Barrigster

Toronte.

Dear Sir,
Replying to your lotter of the 15th instant,I beg to say that
I find the following information :
Hamilton,Alexander. - Appointed Captain in the 18t troop of
', Niagara Dregoons . The 19% troop was raised Juns,1512,by enrclment of
,‘},\'{ volupteers from the Militia; it was engaged cn the expediticn to Detroit,
(y\ and in the cutting cut of the "Calsdonia® and "etroit™h, {or which it was

thanked in General Orders. After serving 8 menths it was disbanded, 25,

H&]&ﬁ/ Feb,.,13.

" a1 Hamilton was present =t Queenston.
3
GG ; :I uéi Hamilton, Thomas, - Capt. in the 37 Regt. York Hilitia,on 27th

J ﬁ,lﬁ\ April, 1812,in one of the Battalions €ompanies, Did duty at York from
W l"\ September 1812 to 27tk April, 18F3,when taken priscnsr o war,at surrender
of York,and released cn parols on the same day.
HEamilton, William.A. - Was a private in Captain Ridout'!s Company,
)’%p 3rd Regiment,Tork Militia, He joined from Captain Howard!s Company on the

9th Sept.,1s12.




in 1832, probably of cholera, is interred there. On
May 27, 1856, many of Sidney's relatives were moved to
the Toronto necropolis. Among those moved were Sidney
Lount (infant son of Mrs. C. (G.?) Lount), a Sidney
McKay, a child of a sister, Rosetta Luecea, who married
Alex MacKay and Charles F., Sidney and George, possibly
family member'’s babies or children of Sidney Smith
Hamilton: Also moved were Thomas, Fobert and Alexander,
possibly all brothers of Sidney4. Others were Elizabeth
Coulthard, the mother of Mrs. S.S. Hamilton, S.S.
Hamilton at 88 years of age, October 31, 1895 and Ann
Coulthard Hamilton at 77 years, 8 months, died August

31, L89S,

For the direct line you can proceed to the Fifth
Generation and Henry Coulthard Hamilton5 omitting the
intervening paragraphs concerning the remaining members
of the Fourth Generation. We will list them and then

deal with them separately.

William Archibald4

Thomas Gilbert4

Alexander Howe4

Robert Wilson4

Caroline Maria4

Horatio Nelson4

Frances Gore4

Euretta Anna4

Rozetta Luesa4 {Luecea) spelled different ways.
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William Archibald4 was born in Granville, Nova
Scotia, May 18th, 1795 and was reared in Upper Canada,
first at Port Dover and then at York. 1Inh 1807 when the
district school was opened he was the second child en-
rolled, preceded by John Ridout (later killed in a duel).
He was married on December 10, 1829 to Elizabeth Thicke
(wd. Flock). In the war of 1812 he was a private (only
seventeen years of age) in the 3rd Regiment of York
militia. He moved to Captain Ridout's Company from
Captain Howard's Company (9-9-1812). He was at the
garrison from 1812-15. In 1828 he may have been a shoe
maker on Church Street. In his land petition he called
himself a voeman but in the 1830 election he is listed
as a grocer who voted for Sheriff Jarvis . In 1837 he
was elected town clerk of York. On June 12, 1845, at the
time of his death, he was a captain at Annapolis Royal
promoting an action to receive his dead mother's legacy
which she had never received. He rests in the Gilliatt
cemetery there with his maternal grandparents, William
and Rebecca Gilliatt and his maternal relatives. After
a lifetime away in Upper Canada he died at his birth-
place in Granville. His land grants were Markham town-
ship concession 9, lot 31 and King township, concession

Bl ‘1o 27

According to the Marston letters Thomas3 and his

two voungest children lived with William Archibald after

b
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WAR DEPARTMENT

THE ADJUTANT GENERAL'S QFFICE

wrercy A,G. 201 Hamilton, Clarles H. [T
REFERTO (9/12/24) oRD September 17, 1924.

[ ]
Mr. Henry C. Hamilton,
Barrister,
40 Vells Street,
Toronto, Canada.

Dear Sir:

In response to your letter o Sep tember 12, 1924, in which you
redquest the military record of Charles Hemilton who is believed to have
enlisted at Rocheater, New York, and to have served ag a ceptain dwring
the Civil War, I have the honor to inform Jou as follows:

The recards show that Charles d. Hamilton, age 29, born in
Rochester, New York, occupation merchant, eyes hazel, hair dark, complex-
ion falr, height 6 feet 1 inch, was enrolled Augus t 21, 1862, at Roche s ter,
New York, and that he was mustered into service September 9, 188, for
three years, as orderly sergesnt, Company M, 3rd Wew York Cavalry Volun-
teers. He is reported presemt or is otherwise satisfactorily accounted
for until Febrwmry 2, 1863, when mustered into service as 2nd lieutem nt
of the same company and regiment. He appears 1o have been present with
the company until September 27, 1863, when mus tered in as lst lieuterant,
and uatil October 11, 1864, when mustered in as captain. He i3 reported
present with the company until mustered out with a detachment am honor-
ably discharged the service July 12, 1865,

Very truly yours,

/ZZ/M @ Dz

‘Major Gempral, -
: The Adjuta'.ni‘:/co eral .
/(J'J i'f’ 77« By (¥
74 N - WA
RS T Aol pled 2B-24p

3 il Wikson Wat ko woil o Rechulin RY aps
WM&AM, -

Lai




the death of their mother.

{Robert)} Wilson Hamilton4 was known by his second
name. He was born in Muddy York on December 2, 1800.
At the age of seven he started at the District Home
School on the same day as his older brother Alexander.
He kept ah inn called William IV beside the Market
Sguare (on the east side). On July 15, 1827 he married
Mary Morinda Wells in York. In the 1830 election of
Sheriff Jarvis he voted for the sheriff and is listed as
a tavern keeper. He and Marv Wells had children:
Thomas Henrfjﬁthe owner of the Bible in Horse Prairie,
Montana) born July 15, 1828, Euretta Anna, born April
15, 1830, and Robert Charles, born October 1, 1831. I
believe this R. Wilson Hamilton became a captain in the

army and his son Robert Charles who lived in Rochester,

N.Y. was later a Lt. Colonel.

Alexander Howe Hamilton4. I believe there were two
Alex Hamiltons in earlv York. ©One was an Irish city
councillor, twice a widower and losing two children as
well., Alex Howe Hamilton of this family listed himself
as a yeoman in his land petition. I do not know
whether or not he was the manufacturer of looking glass,
carver and gilder of 118 King Street, In 1833 an

Alexander Hamilton signed a petition along with Family

57
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Compact members - merchants and prosperous artisans. I
am uncertain about Alex. Howe Hamilton. A man of that
name bought and moved Dr. Macauley's cottage, rebuild-
ing it after it burned while being moved. More study is

needed here..

Thomas Gilbert4, the second oldest son was the
first white child born at Ryersee River probably in 1796
or 1797, before the family came to York. On June 1,
1807 he started school enrolled as the third entry
behind John Ridout and William Archibald, his brother.
In the early 1836-37 atlas of York he is listed as a
carpenter at Macauley Lane as well as another Thomas
Hamilton called a carpenter at Boulton's Block Lot
Street (Queen Street). This second man could have been
his son because in his land petition he mentions having
two children. 1In the St. James Cathedral christenings
a Thomas Hamilton is the father of a baby girl Susanna
but he was a Sgt. of the 7lst Regiment at the garrison
and not a resident of York. It seems there were many

Thomas Hamiltons in early York!

Horatio Nelson4 listed himself as a wason in his
land petition and received land in 1828. At the age of
26 years, four years later, he died, probably of cholera

because 1832 experienced a bad epidemic. 1In his brother's




cemetery plot there is an infant Horatio Nelson who died
in 1856 at one month and twelve days - possibly the son

of a nephew or brother.

Euretta Anna4 died in 1828 at the age of fifteen,
the same year her mother died. Her father Thomas3 wrote
Marston a letter two weeks after Euretta's death. In
Cathedral records she was christened March 6, 1819 -
she must have been six years old at the time. No

baptisms on that page listed sponsors.

Rozetta4 married Alex McKay, a King Street merchant,
on July 19, 1837. This account was found in old news-
paper records in the North York Public Library. Rev.
W.T. Leitch performed the ceremony. The store

is taken from "The Privileged Few" by John Lownsbrough?#

Caroline4 married Charles MacIntoch and Francis4

married William Elliott. Both of these marriages are

dealt with elsewhere (page Jd2 )+ p23

L]
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5th Generation Henry Coulthard Hamilton5

H-C-S's early years
In an attempt to understand this man a 1little
better, I read a copy of his book which is basically
two- books - the first ten chapters deal with Col.
Wolseley's expedition west to quell the Riel Rebellicn
{along with their transportation and other difficul-
ties). The remainder of the book concerns his early
life and travels which eventually led him to settle
in Sault Ste. Marie, as well as his expedition to
Hudson's Bay along with Mr. Borron a geoclogist in
the area. He describes life in the early Sault one
hundred years ago and his boyhood play around Esplanade
and Frederick Streets water front in Toronto, - -
The second half of the book is very humorous
portraying a likeable adventurous man enamored with
nature and sailing.

Revealing passages are "Lake Muskoka was one
of the group of Muskoka Lakes closest in touch with
populated centres of Ontarie at this time, (1870)
and I only saw one settler's log house on it, with
a patch of potatoes surrounding it"...... "In the moment
of that utterance all the advantages of city life
flashed upon me. Instinctively I felt 1like calling
the police.”

"To add to the uncomfortable nature of our
position, my two companions had been infected with
poison ivy on the trip, and it so affected them, that
their bodies were badly swollen in many places and
they were rendered quite ill. In this plight, it
was decided that they should rest at our camp while
I coursed among the islands in a canoe in the hope
of finding some stray Indian, who could show us the
rout to Parry Sound.”

A client of his in Toronto suggested that he
come to the Sault because of the new developments

(i.e. rcilway, canals etc). "After 1listening atten-
tively to him three features struck me: first, that
it must be a most beautiful country, and the fishing,
shooting, hunting and canceing, all of which appealed
most strongly to me, were all that could be desired:
second, the contentious matters in the District would

afford a proper element of excitement; and third that
the financial results promised to be most gratifying;

and that, altogether, it locked like a lawyer's Eldor-
ado."




The Fifth Generation - Henry Coulthard Ham‘il_ton5

Henry C. was born in Toronto in 1858, he became
a lawyer, married Georgina F. Thompson and they came
to the Sault as newly weds. This was before the rail-
way was built in the winter of 1884, when the last
sixty miles of the trip from St. Ignace was made by

dog train.

He was mayor of the Sault from 1890-91 ahd was
a prime mover in organizing the Sault Ste Marie and
Ontario Light and Power Company which built the first
power canal. It was he who conducted negotiations
which resulted in F.H. Clergue coming to the city and
establishing industries here including Algoma Steel,
He attracted capital, negotiated with governments and
was counsel for the industries until reorganization in

1904.

The family first lived on the north-east corner of
Pim and Herrick Streets - the birthplace of their first
son, George Coulthard Hamiltons. They then moved to
Bellevue Park in the prior home of Col. John Prince,
the city’s first judge (next page), In this home Henrv
S. was born on a cold January day in 1887. I shall
include on the following pages a letter written by

Mrs. H.C.'s mother when she made the long journevy with

L 1)
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her son Reggie from Toronto to the Sault via Michigan
to be with her daughter at the birth of her second son.

It was an ordeal of train, boat and stagecoach (sleigh).

This family had many homes - the third of which
was built on the edge of Fauguier hill on Barron Avenue,
Robert Hector, their youngest son was probably born here.
In 1905 the family returned to Toronto to Norwood Lea a
lovely estate on the edge of Scarborough Bluff. Un-
fortunately about this time the wealth disappeared to a
great extent and the family moved to 23 Admiral Road, 170
and 30 Albany Road - but I believe the Wells Street

address was the office number ©n much correspondence.

After H.C. died November 7, 1925, he was brought to
the Sault and buried from the home of his son H.S., at
59 Fauquier Avenue, This was a home that the latter
had had built on the hillside near his former residence
and which his son decided to buy sometime before 1921 -

the home. of my husband. Malcolm.

The city of Sault Ste. Marie honoured the memory
of H.C.5 by naming the new lounge in the new City Hall
in his honour. « The family owes him a tribute for
the first steps taken on the path of his family's
genealogy. He also drafted a local history which was

never published; the original of which is in possession
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5
(o, R. B, Hamilten

FORMER COLONEL MOURNED BY QUEEN’S OWN

The late COL. R, B. HAMILTO

Queen’s Own (

years in the regiment, having enlisted fn 1he ranks,

In his 81st yea

. %

IREU-1897) and I recont years,

r.

g8ged for many vears In the busineas
of & mining broker and in the sale af
; machinery. g

HAD NOTED MILITARY
AND PUBLLC CAREER

Col. R. B. Hamilton, Form-
er 0.C. of Queen’s Own,
« . Dies in 81st Year.

Torente's military and publie lita
loat one of 1its outatanding characters
Yeaterday, with the death In the Home
for Incurables of Col. Robert Baldwin
‘Hemllton, former commander of the
Queen's Own Rifles. He was In ;‘hl B1st
1
(year.

130. 1847, the gon of the late Mr. and
a!'Mrn. Sidney Smith qullten. He
‘graduated frota the old Toranto Made]

1und Model Orammar Schools, betng one
of the Tirst dtudents of the former lh-
stitution. He joiried his father In busi-
~; ness for aome years, and was later, for
13 years, Inspector of vital statistica
for the Province of Ontario. Foilowing
i!hls retirement from that poat, he en-

He wus born in Toropto on October|

For several years he was a member
|, 0f the Taronto. Clty Couneil and of
,: the Public Bc¢hool Board.
' For 3t vears continuously, Col. Ham-
'} 1lton was connected with the QO.R.
‘' He enlisted in the ranka, and rose
 through successive ateps to the com-
I mand of the regiment, succeeding Cnl.
| (now Gen.) Str William Otter. Ha held
fthe ppst for elght Years, retiring in
© 1887, He was also commander of the!
| Hoys' Brigade for several years,
i Turing the Crest War he Provea’
himself of great value in preparing
. men for overseas. He aiso took an ac-
tive part in many patriotie endeavors,
co-0perating ceaselessly with MANY wo- |
( mMen's organizations which had for
thelr object the assistance of the men
at the front. =
During most of his career hes togk
R deep wond sctive interant {n sporis.
He wss one of the fathers of lacrosse
In Canads..-In his younger years he
was & well-known Player, being ‘cap-|
taln of his team for 13 YOArs, and prest-
dent for three years. Hs was twice pra-
i sldent of the National Amaleur Ig.
crosae Assoclation, and was one of the
foundere and first president of the
Canedian Lacrosse Association. It wag
due largely to his effgris that suft.
able lacrosse grounds were established
In various parts of the city. He wan
& charter member of the Granite Club.
He 15 surviveq by hia wife, formeriy
| Miss Mary Kate Pellatt, aister of s8It
{ Henry Pellatt. One deughter, who way
the wife of Professor Htephen Lancoek,
of McGii University, Montreal, famous
Canadian humorisg and asaaylst, dled

WO Years ago In London Eng.

Funeral service wiit ke held ta-day,
conducted by Rov, G L. B Jehnson,
rector af Si. Saviour's Churciy,

P

L]
i

N as he appeared when 0.0, of the
He was for thirty-one|,
He died on Swulay |

Lbegraece — Opx ;‘L";,.’?“T

Mr. Stephen Leacock, the humorous writer
and professor of political economy  at
McGill University, Montreal, photographed
with his wife on thejr arrival in England,

Ag.nn- J 08
u.dd{‘:m bﬁ.a-wﬁ:;':p.
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of his great-grandson, Dduglas HamiltonB. His pursuits

were not all literary, for he owned a farm at Oro, Ontario,
outside Toronto which he operated through a manager, a

Mr. Emms. After his death his collection of early paint-
ings of the area by Armstrong and others were donated to

the city.

The next generation continues with Henry Sidney Hamil-
HtonG, however, here I shall deal with Henry C.'s
brother and sisters , i.e., Robert Baldwins, Isabella

Euretta5, Elizabeth5 rand Margarets.

Robert Baldwins, born in Toronto on October 10, 1847
was the eldest son of SidneyrSmith4. He graduated from
the old Toronto Model and Model Grammar Schools. He
worked with his father before becoming inspector of vital
statistics for Ontario. He was a Toronto Council and
School Board member as well as a colonel in the Queen's
Own. He founded and was first president of the Canadian
Lacrosse Association and was a charter member of the
Granite Club. He married Mary Kate Pellatt, sister of
Sir Henry Pellatt . One daughter, Beatrice "Trixie",
who married the Canadian humourist, Stephen Leacock, pre-

deceased her father by two years in London; England, in

1926. She had breast cancer,




Remaining members of the Fifth Generation are
Euretta Isabella5 who died at 15 years of age:
Elizabeth5, who married John Adams of Toronto, assistant
inspector of the Bank of Toronto. They had at least
two sons Geoffrey and Osborne Adams - I believe the
former was a barrister. Margaret married Wm. Evans

of St. Catherines but I believe they lived in Niagara.

Mr. H. S. Hamilton used to say that he had distant

relatives in the Sault named Evans.

They 1lived on the Second Line in the Sault and

may have been H.S.'s first cousins.cLqu|GG\

Ly
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Prince's Bellevue home

first
ears what is now Bellevue Park was the home of Algoma's

Judgioail] }.rlohn Prince, who lived there until 1870 during the last 10 years of
his life. The house, which was ripped down in a state of disrepair in 1923, wai
also the blrthplace in 1887 of the late Henry (Harry) Hamilton, a prominen

Sault lawyer who represented the area in the Commons between 1935 and 1940.
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Cutstanding Cié

Al loo stiduin dows Sault Ste,
wirate Yo one of it§ citizen: fov LT
done.”

In e:.pre.,sm.,. the thanks of the Sauit Lions
Ciub te Marry 8. Hamilten for his “cxcebent
aderess” on the cceasion of the club's colebra.
tion of “Uniled. Nstions Week" R. L. Curran
remarked ihat “even al an age when he could
sit back and Jeave that measuré of public rer.
viee for others t¢ take wp My, Hamiltsn cone
linues {0 place hig patrictism snd wil fo 5ETVE

oiners before himself”

I owar & wellfounded tributa i “a rekt
solditr, our former mémber of par ﬁi')l‘ufni
director of tha Bauli Chamber of C‘am;re*ce
&nd chisf of the eommunity's Sivilian Gefenics
wrgakizalion,"

“Too often we are prone té wais Wil s matt
vetirsd from public life before we pay him iy
Jueet dues™ azid Mr. Curran,

Ho referred to the Sauli isww=sr s “s mag
with an irtellizent capadity to obisrve the se-
tivities of {the Unifzd Natons" ard zodes Hrad
Zault Ste. Marle was forfunsie ip eount Vikjs
aczive son” 25 ond of iis ailizens,

M Hamiltem has bewn identified with muris
of the developmeat of the commumily. mhsist
=nez. thal - hag bt&gj{; hoth helpiul pad '"r—atisuc.

- e e ete it e e et s

From

!"*—g.,.

'f“"ae,‘

lfon

& ooily sdlinde he

IR gwiding hand 1o Ty
councii ‘.J‘.h. aﬁsﬁ Iends & messurs of Giznily ta
thit oftice.

‘n

For revera! yéars he Map served ar 2 fiverior
ol the Alyoma Steel Corporation and s words
of advize and counsel have igeetved high praies
from IHe corporstion’s 2xeulive Beavd,

e, Hamilion was the fivst Sauld by (o aniict
tthe cuttvesk of World War One, weni over-
rzz with the First Canadian Lt}n“"gom, #na
was the lirst Canadisn soldicr “'O‘Llnufﬂ in ba:-
e, In the armr he rose th rrough the racks
1o bacamt & colonel ond on veturning Lo Cannca
¥gtained his ecinsetion with the army by cop-
tinuing =4 sffiliation with the Sault Ble, Maris
mgiment, then .o non-permanent active nsiid-
tia. He is an hencraty member of the Eault
untr tnday,

Long 2 st der.t of-local historr, Mr. Iramiliow
& I8 Yiars ago p‘esen*eu eollaction of pair
ings of early seenes in the Saulf, origing 3,-
gatnered by his fal atner, to the cily as a poT-
manent vecord,

Sumiming ap, we offer tha thoughi it
Hamtlten rapis with Sault e, Mavie's ouoi.
"ano‘.m_n; citizens.

n

3

“jo.uﬁ' Star”
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Henry Sidney HamiItOns'e Sixth Generation

My husband's father Henry Sidney6 was the second
son of Henry Coulthard Hamiltons, born in Bellevue Park,
January 25th, 1889, as I have already stated. After
graduating from Osgoode Hall and while on leave from
World War I (wounded) he married Lorraine Kathleen Vera
Irwin of Weston near Toronto. He returned to the front
until the end of the war by which time he had become a
Lt. Col. On returning to Canada he and his wife left
Toronto to make their home in the Sault where they lived
from some sixty vears until their deaths, staying a short
time at 178 Brock Street and a lifetime at 59 Farquier
near Collegiate Heights, in a home his father H.C. had
had built on the same hill. He died in January 1976
after many months in the Plummer Memorial Hospital:
Lorraine died in her sleep at 59 Farquier where she had
spent most of her married life. The date was November

21, 1979 and she was in her 87th year.

Henry6 served his country, district and city well.
From 1939 to 1943 he represented Algoma in Ottaww as a
Liberal Member. This was during World War II at the
start of which he had the honour of making the first
response to the speech from the throne that led to
Canada's declaration of war. During World War II he was

in charge of civilian defence for the district of Algoma




TRy REN SMITH ™7 Tof the war was the army's pol-

SAULT STE. MARIE, Ont
. {CP)—"“The ultimate terror of
war is death or mutilation on
the. battlefield.”
'Those are the words of Henry
8. Hamilion and he knows what
he's talking about, for he holds
itwo distinctions -in commection
wlm&nadzlrolomtwoworld
Y wars,
:' Inﬂ:eﬂrst.onFeb m 10185,
he became almost certainly the
first Canadian serving with the
Canadian Expeditionary Force
; to be wounded n action.
*:In the second, in Heptember,
£1030, as Liberal member of
ﬁPa.rliament ‘he moved the' ad-
;dress 'In reply to the speech
; from. the throne, jn effect Can-
a.da.'s declaration of war. K
. He has other intimate con-|
Imocﬂons with war, too—his rec-
ollections of the front in 1915
~after he rteturned to ectlon
from hospital; his younger
t brother Robert killed in action
An August, 1918, just & .few
t weeks befors the armistice;
!'his. son Malcolm, who flew Ty-
‘'phocn ﬂghtmbombm n. the
. Second World War. e
* 80 when he talks, in a calm

gld]l puﬂ.ca ll.w from the ot

. flce “which .he' returned

NI 2o n;m !4?_.:.;. 3
3 am

mmmded by long’ iow; of le.
hgal - tornes, he ta.lke_df ot_‘the
‘years 1914 to 1918, -0 - T

#° T haven't heid dataﬂs ln- my
ffmind I:'inottho sort atth.hg
Eyou dwell on—men killed,. ‘some

it ) ALY

, A b i R T
g In . the second war, ‘it must
have bean different because. the
Emmory of the slaughterhouse
th the first was ltll.l vivid, ' -
:He uid, u‘ter & pauss, his
Finoet .dominant’ impreasion - of
é&. aarly days at the front was
Gﬂrm.l.u'{‘s preparedness,/ ‘es
:pecially ‘a8 fsr - sy eq'uipmant
m concerned, '
““They had, in somo sections.
tuur times. the number of artil-
lery guns  while .ours aomp-
 times were even rationed on
 the number of :hella.they could
ifire in "mm. saca
S CBut wantuany we got ‘equal-
r1ty and then & prepmdera.nce of
guns. ‘And that vas sweet mu.
i'sle to scared soldiers, when we

Yeould outshoot them,

i “Hquipment gaves human
‘Hives in war, and you have fo
pay, for the lack of it with hu-
m\'ltvu (1 b

T P T T e

\uix'-i‘

fcy of not commissioning men
from the ranks at the front
Instead, officers with no bat-
tle experience would be sent to
France to take command of
war - toughened soldiers who
had learned at bitter cost about
the hell that surrounded them.

l!tnrthnnruWorldm

| War,'as ‘s ‘Heutenant "« . colonel|

éad. address as’ Ll‘bem!mber

{force .and violence, -

o It wasn't, he smid grimly; the
best of morale boosters,

That policy eventually was
changed and by the end of the
war he rated the Canadian
Army one of the best fighting
units on the Western Front,

Mr. Hamliiton, who had grad-
usted a3 a lawyer in the spring
of 1914, left’ his homs town
w'lf.h the Sault contingent of the
Znd Battallon Aug. .20. After re-
cefving prellm.lrmry tra.l.nlng- at
Valeartier, Que.:, he’ sailed for,
Europe in September,

Five months later he was
shipped into mction.

He was wounded 15 hmms
after going to the front as a
sergeant with the 2nd Battallon,
Gl.nad.la.n Expeditionary Force,

i-He: received. his commision
l.tﬁ'l.tmntinmlﬁlndwhm
the, war ended he ‘was major.
Dm-tng .the ’ .Second: World.

commanding the Rault militia,
he was in charge of civil . de-
fence for the area, rated.a key
spotbecause of*; ity vita.l‘
Lan was " his Beptember:

that knows nothing of the value
of human mdividuelity and bu-
man Uiberty, whose instruments
are ruthless  and
an ttter
negation of all the things we
havebeenh.ughxtova.lus... o
“Believing this, to. me this
war is Canada’s war. To me
the. defeat of Britain is the de
feat ‘of Ca.m.da. The defest of
Frnco 18 the defeat of Canada.
To me the death of every Brit:
ish, French or Pelish soldier,
Sailor or ‘agviater in resisting
German force and violence at
thistlmelsa].l:egivenlnthe
service of Cabada. . . -

Recalls

FII‘ST Canadmn
‘Man Wounded
.ar

-

q.-;“

AR

‘%{1.

EJ"’ Cmdxan civii-
inr - services

|wartime is “the) 4
{award of the Order -
rﬁf ‘the -British Eme¢j
to Harry S. Hamll-
-tca, E.C. ;
*'The Canadian
C‘wman Honors list B
doas “ngt state” the
E'specmc ‘reason’ for

Hhe' award 1o Mr; Ha:mlton ~He'
_adgd the __Saulg'; ARP. orgam;a;_

I
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for which he received an 0.B.E. (which he gave to the

city) .

During his life he lived in many locations in this
city, as an infant at Bellevue Park, as a boy on Barron
Avenue hillside, newly married at 178 Brock Street and
thereafter at 59 Farquier which they occupied shortly

after it was built by his father H.C. Hamiltons. H.S.ﬁ

was instrumental in the construction of the International

Bridge which spans St. Mary's River joining Sault Canada
and Sault Michigan. He spent many years on that pro-
ject. His only failure was his attempt to learn French.
One summer his parents sent him to Montreal where he
stayed with his cousin Trixie and her husband Stephen
Leacock, when the latter taught at McGill. He enjoyed
himself but the language eluded him! Some of his
letters from France however showed great promise. # All
the bovs attended U.C.C. but George did not pursue a
profession. Hefgggiied Kathleen Reesor of Markham
whose genealogy has been published. He died in Toronto
in mid-life with no children. Unlike his father and

brother he did not practise law in the Sault but his

nephew Ian Hamilton is continuing the tradition to the

third generation.
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The youngest member of the sixth generation was

H.S.'s brother Robert Hectorﬁ, No other member of this
family received so much publicity in so many newspapers
across Canada because of the mystery, the tragedy, and
the youth of the wictim. He enlisted in the only manner
possible for an underage male in World War I - as a
trumpeter at the age of sixteen. By eighteen he was a
sargeant trumpeter which rank he relinquished in order
to ¢o to France as a soldier. As a gunner he received

a serious head wound - probably critical. 1In this state
he disappeared while under hospital treatment but
judging from the medical reports he could not have
survived. Despite all this and the conflicting reports
the family hoped for years for his discovery. I submit

only one account ~ of the many in our possession.

An excerpt from the story is worth noting
vapparently all trace of Gunner Hamilton was lost after
he was placed in the ambulance car to go to the White
Chateau:. His comrade, who later died of wounds there,
was fully recorded, but notwithstanding that he was
dispatched for the White Chateau in the same car,
Gunner Hamilton disappeared as though wafted on the

wings of the wind".




E,F‘-F""m oD~ b iy
N The: greas ;wmr Jeft ot only: sarrow,
gmd suffering . In fta wake,  but manyy
{mystertos, one of Lhe most inexplicabled
bot--which' was  the = disppenrance o
(Gunner Robert. -Hector, ” Hamliton,
¥Torouto, wholiJifter. being. wounded, ind
dvessing atatfom of
, Ambulance "ot

moved. to tha main’
1, Canadig.
£k - - Hear Bovew 4t

3 J Yie . earth ! L
Hd wwellowed . ftifn’ up,) Tumnér: Hamils
4vn was & cousinvat 8.V, Adams, manas
Fger of the Wesr End’bradch-off ihe
:Bank of ‘Toronto, here. g = -3
-2 Desplta” thé mos austive séarch:
fur. more than three“yeary; No .(race
can;be found of Gunner Hamilton™ from,
‘the time that, suffering-fromr a“wound
n: the head, he Wus taken wih:o'hery
womradas to: the. : “White . Chateay,”.
jseven mivs behind the. front. lLne. ‘It
i3 the more remarkable In that- ahotier
wounded comrads coniveyed” td" the dress—
ng station:in thp-same ambulan with
ithe nilasing’man weas fully fecorded ax;
¥having been admitted: to the stationy
‘and yet all tracé of Gunner Hamlltony
talsappears from the time hs was dla~
with his;

{patched In. the ambulancs
teowrade-tp-arme. + we sl
%CNLISTED AT 180 b rar

t* Gunner- Hamlilton enlisted as & trump-
isivf with the 48th Battery .when 1¥
fyearr of age, In Fabruary, 1316, beln4
kteo young to Lo taken for overseams
igervice in any other capacity. He.was]
transfarved ‘to’ the $3th Battery, “witly
iy October, 191

‘In "England,” I

“ter from wn officar wt the front that ind
the early pamt of the previous mionth.
FAugust. that & German shell hiad struck
rand - exploded  close to the gun. with
Fwhich -Gunner “Hamilton’ waa . Berving,
Nratantly killing® 8ve of "hig. comrageés:
Lifd_ a0 savarely, Wonnding  the youui:
roronto man-and shother comrade that’
PAttle baps: was hald _out ;for . thelr.ré=
‘dovery. - The” litter stated {hat they:
Ll Jdressing mtation, whers

‘wers taiten to's.
{ﬂga ~éomrade dled,

and that, -.I.thfmgh1
nothing - further had-beén heard of ‘Guns

T W .
OTTAWA REPORTED, & & "“:3
. - Up until’ .this : time the famly had;
‘heard nothing from milMtiry headquar-i
j.ters of the young hero's casualty andi
: belleving &nd hoping that there -wa

“sume- mistake In connection with the’
‘privats Information,” immedlately com-
municated with the militia depa.rtme’n:!
ist Ottawa, who-reparted, thag they had
L no information thet he had been wound-

Fed "and that he was well'and with hi;
Lurlt. . Parsonal- Zriends in London.- Eng

land, were.cabled’in an sffort to obtal

‘the overseas minister of militia, with’
‘the same result, that they had no in-t
formation “of the -young man having
-teen woudded. . a0
" Purther  Information which flitered
g ugh from privite scurces from-time
ito time Indicatsd beyond doubt -that]
FQunuer Hamilton - had - been. -severely:
wounded and Lhe. ioatter was again
pressed ‘upon - the- military authorities
Lboth at Ottawa and oversean. A.special]
ireport from the overséas offices am-
pounced thit he had been nvallded--to
‘England An¢ that effomts -wers' belng'
imade to trace him. = o =iy
7 This news relieved ito-some - oxtent

il anxiety of the Hamliton family,
fbut as months passed and %here was no

ficrther word; the matter of tracing the
{¥oung .Canadian was again urged upon
Ahe overseas-- officel Milltary. head-
qaurters +at Ottawa continued to repart)
ithat they had Ro. anpouncement that he
“had been -wounded and.that he was well
sand with-his unif. until November,.1913,
rwhen an official Lelegram to his parenta
ireported him' “misslng, August 8. "
3 Friends and  reistives ' merving:.in
- had :meabitimae beefr. fps;lgu_ &

r. Hamilton by h
ad R . rel

in>unid,. it was, hopedy
'v an i aThe ,—:'..- C—k_

o

>

-
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T 1etters _conveyad. the news.

Jdressing ata
,L.,,..,,..m

‘'commanding the &h Army Brigads re-

oy

=1

-y

cro-

T — T
(Contlnued regn Page bum ¥
an active lnquiry and they confirmed
the Information that he had been
severely wounded. Subsequent personal
: ] : that - the |
liop to which Gunner Ham-
' IRRTWEE T DT, |
on the.Amiens-Roye road, sbout Aine |
miles southeast.of the Chy of Amlens, |
It was claimed that the report of the
oversess office, -“mtssing‘; August 8§,
‘was an:arbitrary one which the offlcer

fused to suoscribe 10. On the coa‘rary,
‘he forwarded a certificate sgned by
nve stwetcherzbearers that in.the:eariy
morning of August ¥,.1913, they cartied
Gunner Hamiiton,". severely wounded
in thy. head, to & dressing station in-
Domat. .. T Bty N

The meager * information - “received
from time 'to time and pleced togoether
showed that the young Canadian hero |-
and his wounded tomrade were cartied
io the regimental aid post, ‘about sul |
vards from the po.nt where they were
wounded and their wounds were dressed
by the brigade medical officer. The Lwo
.men were then .carried to the ad-
vanced dresaing station : at’ Domart, |
cperated. by No. § ‘Canadian d Am-
bujanca,. a . little oyex  a: mile. distant p
 from the aid post; where.they wera de-
lvpred ta -the medigal: gfficer of the
station. From -therq they. vers taken |
withun -halt an hour by ‘moter amblu- ¥
lance to'-the sdvanced dressing -station f-
at énteles. Yood, ~about- two milex
from Domiart o the Amisns-Roye Téad.
At 1his point’ thelr- weunds- wera again

4

»dressed dnd they were Immediatay: sent |

Rt

A7 pad,’ The'latter’ in wituate oo the-Fork:
{Road running °trom’ 'tlgo{'ﬁkmlena-noya
fosd-and ibout, gevef ‘miles; from - the:

i‘;‘_

| the . sama car, (Fuhneés Hamijton: dlsaps [

i pf the wind. =% i & B
| - It js. the .mare. remariable” when ' it

 faavarely “wouhded . and unconscicus and

{-'ha cou.d myt. move, about undas.ated andi

' have had to fegmim ‘conaciousness.-and
{'then -elude the .vigilance of, those: fn
'whose charge-he was pliced, Jof AL ra-

¥|that It he had.died .he 'would have bad
-1 to ‘pass throu ch
‘Tof the Army) Medical' Corps- detalind. ta:

4n.the same pmbulante car to' the: maip. iy
dresaing- atat-on. ar the- “White 'Chat~

front battle’line. . -0 .8 %% e [l
7 Apparently “all; trace of Gunner Hams ty
{iton’ wan ‘lost after-he was-placed in
the ambulanca car’'to ‘go to the "W_hita'—
‘Chafaau.” His comrade; who latter died [
‘of wounds, thery,. was fulLy cecorded, ]
bt “rotwithmtanding:that: he -was- 'dis-'H

patched ;. for-‘ihe’ "' White: Chateaw “in

e

peared-as_though "_ugi.no_d___bn_ the wings. §
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i® remembered that the young man wasz

‘although deliveréd .- to and : placed -k
charge™of a”aystematized medical unit,;
disappeared’ In broad- daylght and Ap- |
parently .froin beneatd their wery sight..
‘He had reached s, polpt, many: rmiles-be-.
 hind -the_ tiring. lbo.; From &l avhilable’
‘Information his tonditfon waa such that

someone must have ‘moved him. Uving
6r dead.” To  have eéacaped he  would}

moved” by othars the. same, holds goed..
"t is pointed; out- on-‘the’ other ‘hand

gh the hands:of, the-branch

1% Py

record deaths- and remove -the perapmal

effects of men'who died! while In thalr]
(1 et po

o T o e v
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“It is more remarkable when it is remembered that

. the young man was seriously wounded and unconscious and
although delivered to and placed in charge of a systemi-
tized medical unit, disappeared in broad daylight and
apparently from beneath their very sight. He had reached
a point many miles behindthe firing line. From all
available information his condition was such that he
could not move about unassisted and someone must have

moved him, living or dead." This brings to an end the

sixth generation.

'W, t. ad (aF &K | _zan.lr1.)«"’!‘-“-:::.6.1 +
'ihhluoz_xir <any; &'}i“ } B
Aine and dl trace 0( nh.lm g.bmlugmf * s
S G g L et ey 2 DY Cnadh.n..ﬂ‘lﬂd
A o L e m. ~§‘.ci‘n‘::, “two, men. have
uﬁ ot u;rln: u;.:rorfr::: roenrdxt:; Leen ducov-'ed vhm. were on active’

L uuqnnnth.lt'dﬂ'ho
dnursf.l.btl._ -1n. cod

f entryrwas madsat: '
um.m;smmw‘:;‘u:.
‘L have reached there; was sulf o
2ol mel.: "‘1 &lr ’m“rﬂ‘““mmu:m :n‘; o wound:Tn- the" forehead. Froa .t;:a ai:-
bcl.nmad.hno umye wbut the. services: Cormation given biamm; mt:t‘ thia ‘un-
“the- United Statas, British, | [Pears o be Jittle doube that
tralls ‘and New.Zealand. No record’ id"’"g"‘: "::_ndh.::'n:p to.the present
_be-Tound of ‘the“death of’ burisl of:f [ 105 IV Sare still being: fade- tn,
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F.O. Hamilton Took Bombs—and Gifre
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How Flying. Officer Malcolm Ham-
ilton of this city made three dramat-
ic flights over Amsterdam is told in
a2 clipping from the London Daily
Mail which was sent here by Brig.-
Gen. Colin Campbell. The Mail
story, under the date line of May
2B relates the following story head-
ed “He .Took Bombs—And Gifts":

“Flying  Officer Halcolm Hamil-
ton of Sault Ste.. Marie, Ont., visited
Amsterdam three times. - .

"The first time: He was a typhoon
pilot and bombed the Gestapo head-
quarters in a pin-point raigd last
November. 2 7

with another pilot last week to see
the effect of that raid.. He found
the ruins of the building with Dutch
houses.next to it.almost. undamaged,
but found people short-of' food, soap
and cigarettes. § A

“The third time: He took four lor-
ries piled high with gifts.”

Flying Olficer Hamilton went
overseas-in IJecember, 1843, He has
been -flying “tiffies,” attached to the:
RA.F, since last 'June. _Concern-
ing the .Amsterdam- flights-hé wrote.
to_his parents, Col. and. Mrs. H. S.,
Hamilton in the laconic “Air Foree
manner only that he had had opera-

“The sscond time: Hs went back

tions over the Dutch capital, .
RS U s e i g .

.:_.,;Sprﬁci Falls —r
Appointmenf

| M. S. M. Hamilton
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Hamilton is ép-
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ecutive
Falls Power
pany, Limite

dian producer of
Pulp and groundwood
succeeding G. L. Carruth

Officer of Spruce

and Paper Com-
d, a major Cana- |
newsprint,
papers,
ers.-

ko retires March 30, 1971,

Spruce Fa

lIs has mill
woodlands operations. at
uskasing, Ontario, and

and
Kap-
this

year is 'qelebrafgiug its . 50th

anniversary.

pulp and
nearly 25
as President
Sasb

Neckawie
(‘o'l in New:‘

Wi, Hamilton

has heen active in Canada’s

paper industry for
years,

most recently
of Prince Albert
Co. Lid, i

and Paper
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The children of H.S. Hamilton and Lorraine Irwin
were all born in Toronto at the home of her parents
(Palmerston Boulevard). The eldest child, Frank, who
was stillborn, was named after Frank Thompson, probably
of his maternal grandmother's family. The eldest sur-
viving child was Henry Irwin born May 1, 1919. After
birth he was brought to the Sault which he left to attend
Queen's University where he received his B.S&. In 1941
he married Edna Steel of Toronto. He taught at Queens
when firstmarried, thereafter going to South America where
he later became resident engineer and project manager for
Alcan both in British Guyana and Brazil. It was in
Brazil where both his sons, Henry Alexander and Robert

Roy were hborn.

Malcolm Smith Mercer HamiltOn7

Malcolm Smith Mercer,7 the founder of this unit was
born in Toronto on September 24, 1921, was educated in
his early years in the Sault and joined the R.C.A.F. after
completing his first year at Queen's. He flew with the
R.A.F. in Europe over Holland and Germany in Rocket

Typhoons returning to Canada in 1945,

Upon finishing his B.A. and post-graduate Industrial

“44
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50

Relations he joined the Canadian Pulp and Paper
Association in Montreal where he became Industrial
Relations manager and, later on, the general manager.

As president of the Landeggar pulp andlpaper operations
in Canada he oversaw the installation of the Prince
Albert Pulp and Paper Mill in Saskatchewan and St. Anne
Nackawic in New Brunswick. The family moved to Toronto
in 1970 when he was made president of Spruce Falls Power
& Paper Co. After four years in
Toronto he returned to Montreal as the first president
of the newly formed Forest Engineering Research Institute
of Canada in Pointe Claire, Quebec, until his retirement
at the age of sixty-three in January 1985, after ten
years as F.E.R.I.C. president. 1In 1946, on May 4th,

he married June Hebert of Sault Ste. Marie in the

Cathedral in Kingston. There were four children.

Robert.Ian7 was the youngest son of Henrv S.
Hamilton and Lorraine Irwin. He graduated with a B.Sc.
in Engineering from Queen's University, Kingston,
Ontario, and worked as an engineer for C.I.P. in Three
Rivers and Hull, Quebec, for a short time. He returned
to Osgoode Hall from which he graduated in law, as did
his father and grandfather before him. After joining
his father's firm he became a 0.C. while practising
law in the Sault. In 1956 he married Sheila Hollings-

worth of the Sault and Winnipeg)and had three children,

two boys and a girl.

k-
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An"Award of $50.00 for the highest standing in French — Jennifer
Russell.

An Award of $50.00 for the highest standing in Canadian Family
Studies — Cheryl Llovd.

An Award of $50.00 for the highest standing in Italian — Cherxl Llovd.

Marconi and Electra Societies Award of $25.00 for the highest stan.
dingin [talian — Cheryl Lloyd.

An Award of $50.00 for the highest standing in Canadian History —
)‘ Douglas Hamilton.

An Award of $30.00 for the highest standing in American Historw —
) Douglas Hamiiton.

The Sault Star Ltd. Award of s50.00 for the highest standing in
English A — Shiela Muirhead and Michael Wray.

An Award of $50.00 for the highest standing in English B — Bonnie
Ostroski.

Soo Mill Award of $50.00 for the highest standing in Mathematies A —
Leslie Hamiiton ’

g mionly He bty

AWARDS - L

Governor General's Medal Society of Managemant
victoria D. J. LaCrosse Accountants Award

Carl J. Sanders Medai Kareri Les Mascardelii

~=Douglas I. Hamitton (Fuii Time) Certified General Accountants
Brian Collstt Wilson (Part Time) Award
Karen Maria Arthur G. Teresa Comagna
(Fall Convocation) The Very Reverend Meletios

Psychology Award Christoforou Scholarship
Victorta D. J. LaCrosse (Honours) Silvana M. Schiavon

Katherine Tayior (G eneral)

oﬁ:ﬂ-—#@f:« MW ok QM"P""""' M{mhxu_g_,

0176640
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The Eighth Generation - Henry Alexander’HamiItgn8

Alex, the eldest son of Henry Irwin7 and Edna Steel,
was born in Brazil February 19, 1949. After early school-
ing in British Guyana, he was sent to Ridley College in
Toronto from which school I believe he graduated before
attending the University of Toronto where he earned a
science degree in Biochemistry. 1In that field he worked
in Brazil concerning the manufacture of alcohol for auto-
mobile fuel. He then moved to "Novo Industri" in Sao
Paulo where he works and lives at present. In December
of 1985 he married Silvana Sandi on her father’'s
ranch in Brazil. Alex and Robert both speak Portuguese
fluently. As yet there are no offspring. I will
attempt to enclose this announcement after the compila-

tion of this genealogy, if possible.

Robert Ro‘y‘H‘am‘i‘l‘-ton-8

Bob, like his brother Alex was born in Brazil in
January 12, 1951 and educated in early years in British
Guyana. Later he attended Ridley College in Toronte and
University of Toronto where he took biochemistry and
accounting after a brief episode away from school when
he studied classical guitar. Bob is the linguist in

the family speaking English, Portuguese and Japanese

fluently. He is at present in Tokyo, Japan
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FRENCH PRIZES
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A. P. Kniewasser V. P. Semogas
LATIN PRIZE 8. E. WHITE HISTORY PRIZE
P. R. Staughter P. M. Leggat
MATHEMATICS & SCIENCE PRIZES PRESENTED BY A R. RENAUD, ESG.
12th Science 11th Science
M. P. Hamiiton v H. E. Wright
12th Mathematics 11th Mathematics
M. P. Hamilton L. W. Hicks, D. A. Hutchison, H. E. Wright
MATHEMATICS PRIZE IN GRADE 9 PRESENTED BY 6. E. D. LANE, ESQ.
N B. R. S. Hall
SCHOLARSHIP . Malcoim 6. S. MOFFITT PRIZE W. E. DUNTON PRIZE FOR ENGLISH
" Hamilton, the son of Mr, and S. ). Lupu L L. Aimers
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The Prince of Wales Prizes (awarded 10 the graduating students in the Faculty
of Aé';s) and Science who are adjudged to have the best academic
recor

The student with the highest standing on the B.A. (Honours) List:
Award to Berenp Hovrus, Kingston, Qptario .
Honourable Mention to Jamds CarMan Avis, Kingston, Ontario

The student with the highest standing on the B.Sc. (Honours) List:
Award 10 MALcOLM PETER HamiiTon, Toronto, Ontario
Honourable Mention to TRUDY CHRISTINA McNaBB, Kingston, Ontario

The Withelmina Gordon Foundation in English, established by the Imperial
Order, Daughters of the Empire, in appreciation of the work of
Professor Wilhelmina Gordon who served as National Educational
Secretary from 1923 to 1937.

$35p: GEORGE BrOOKs HARGREAVES, Edmonton, Alberta

OUniane ;
Berenp Hovius, Kingston, Ontario
Joun ROBERT Guy, Cobourg, Ontario
MaLcoLM PETER HammTon, Toronto,
Ontario ) .

Medal in History:
Medal in Latin:
}Medal in Mathematics:




where he is employed in accounting by a Japanese

American firm. 1In his early Tokyo years he taught
English at University there while perfecting his

Japanese. As yet he is unmarried.

Malcolm’ and June had four children all born at
St. Mary's Hospital in Montreal, Quebec. Mary died at
birth on April 1, 1948, April Fool's Day; Malcolm Peter
was born December 31, 1950, New Year's Eve - 2 a.m.;
Avrille Anne, June 15, 1952, Father's Day that year;
and Angelique Louise, November 11, 1960, Remembrance
Day.

Malcolm Peter Hamj:lton8

Malcolm's early years were spent in Dorval, Quebec,
where he attended St. Veronica's School until the family
moved to Roslyn Avenue, Westmount. After one year at
St. Leo's he attended L.C.C. for his high school and
Grade 12 receiving a Province of Quebec scholarship for
Queen's. He graduated from Queen's in Science (Mathe-
matics and Physics) with the highest standing of his
year enabling him to receive a National Research
Scholarship. As a summer student he obtained exper-
ience at the Nuclear Research base in Chalk River. He
took his M.Sc. at McGill University joining the Sun Life

Insurance Company to train as an actuary. While earning
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AWARD
HUGH ALEXANDER HOSKIN' Approx.
SCHOLARSHIP 5250

For outstanding work in Oral Diagnosis —
Theoretical and Clinical

WILLIAM R. JACKSON AWARD $300
For superior ability in Clinical Prosthodon-
tics taking into account the student’s interest,

antitude and conduct
JOSEPH HARKER JOHNSON Approx.
SCHOLARSHIP $650

For the best achievement in Oral Surgery and
Angesthesia both Theoretical and Clinical

S.A. MACGREGOR AWARD $500 and
For extracurricular activities, leadership Plague
qualities and scholastic artainment

S.A. MACGREGOR PRIZE Gold Medat

For owtstanding work in Clinical Paedodontics

JOHN EARL MOSER MEMORIAL PRIZE $100
For the best performance on the Final

Examination in Radiology

ORAI, ANATOMY SCHOLARSHIP $250
To a student with Honours in Oral Anatomy in  (shared)
Jirst year and with an outstanding performance

in Clinical Oral Surgery and Clinical Ortho-

dontics

ORTHODONTICS BOOK PRIZE Textbook
For owutstanding work in Orthodontics -
Theoretical and Clinical

PROSTHODONTIC PRIZE Approx.
Best performance in Clinical Prosthodontics = $100
MAXWELL ROCKMAN MEMORIAL Textbooks
PRIZE

For outstanding performance in Clinical

Radiology 1
W. GEORGE SWITZER MEMORIAL Gold Key
PRIZE

For greatest proficiency in Clinical

Prosthodontics

PAUL TAKAHASHI SCHOLARSHIP Approx.

For most outstanding student in Periodontics = $125
Theoretical and Clinical

ALBERT E. WEBSTER MEMORIAL Approx.
SCHOLARSHIP $150
For owstanding work in Clinical Operative

Dentistry

RECIPIENT

PERRY H. LICHTBLAU
MARK F. STEVENS
EARL M. SHUMAN

JULIA RUKAVINA

JACQUELINE A. MARK

JAMES M. JENKINSON

AVRILLE A. BOW
HARTLEY S. KESTENBERG

P. BONNIE CHANDLER

WILLIAM A. BASSETT

DANIEL J. POLLIT
JENNTFER A. HIBBERD

EUGENE KHOLOV

MARK F. STEVENS




an F.S.A. and F.C.I.A., he married Heather Benson on
December 20, 1975, the only daughter of the late Stewart
Benson and Beryl Thorburn. The ceremony took place in
the United Church in the Town of Mount Royal, Quebec.

He is at present an actuarial consultant in Toronto
with William M. Mercer ILimited. He lives at 177
Hillhurst Boulevard in Toronto with his wife and two

daughters.

Dr. Avrille Anne Hamilton (Bow)_8

Avrille8 like M_alcolm8 lived in Dorval, later
attending Villa Maria Convent and McGill University
after moving to Westmount in. 1962. She earned a B.Sc.P.T,
before acting as a physiotherapist at the "Constance
Lethbridge" in Montreal. She married James Winston Bow,
the youngest son of Lyman Bow and Elizabeth Barber. The
marriage was held at Notre Dame Cathedral Chapel on
August 3, 1973, a few years before the chapel fire,
caused by an arsonist. Two years after the birth of
her daughter, Jennifer, she left her position with the
"Workman's Compensation for Ontario" to enter dentistry
at the University of Toronto. Just six months later
she had her second child, Aaron. She received her
D.D.S. in the spring of 1982 from the University of
Toronto. Shortly afterwards her third child, a daughter,

Alison was born.
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Angeiique\LeuiSE'Hami1t0n8

Angie attended St. Paul's in Montreals O.L.P.H.
in Toronto for four years during a sojourn there.
After returning to Montreal she graduated from Sacred

and Marianoplis

Heart Conventalater attending McGill University from
1979 to 1984 where she spent one year in Commerce before
entering law school. She obtained a B.C.L. in 1983
and an LIB. in 1984. She articled in Toronto, attended
Bar School at Osgoode and was called to the bar in
April 1986. At present she is practising law at
Goodman and Carr and is engaged to Peter McCarter an-
other lawyer with Aird Berlis. They are to be married

January 3, 1987 at St. & Parish in Willowdale,

Ontario.

Leslie Ruth Ham'ilton8

The youngest son of Henry S..6 and Lorraine was
Robert Ian who married Sheila Ruth Hollingsworth (born
December 15, 1931) in 1956 in Sault Ste. Marie. There
were three children all born in the Sault. Leslie Ruth
born January 23, 1958, Douglas Ian, born March 14, 1960,

and Holly-Bruce, born April 19, 1965.

Leslie, the eldest, received her elementary
education at King GeorgeV Public School with her

secondary education at the Sault Collegiate Institute.
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After a few years in science at Sault College she attended
the University of Windsor where in 1984 she graduated with
a Bachelor of Science in Nursing. In July, 1983, she
married David Heagle of Bay City, Michigan, where they
live at present. She was nursing at St. Mary's Hospital
in Saginaw, Michigan, but I believe she is contemplating

a move in residence to Owasso, Michigan, in order to be

near his father who is ill..S€ep Sio)

Douglas Tan Hamilton8

Douglas Ian graduated from Sault Collegiate after
his elementary schooling at King George V. For two years
he worked before continuing with his university studies.
He is at present in his fourth year in Computer Science
at Algoma University College. He is in possession of
Henry C'56 original history of the Sault and area.
Douglas is interested in historical and literary pur-

suits as well as science. At present he is not married.

"Graduated in 1987 with award for highest standing.“@86f5“Q

Holly-Bruce Ha'mi_l'ton8

Like his sister and brother, Hollv-Bruce went to
university following his training at King George V and
the Collegiate Institute. In the fall of 1985 he
started engineering at the University of Waterloo. I
believe he is in Chemistry and Biology. Holly is not

married as vet.
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The Ninth Generation

1986 has some very young members in this generation
-~ all of whom descend from Malcolm and June. Malcolm
Peter8 and Heather have two daughters, Kimberley
Lorraines, born September 27, 1979 and Laura Christineg,
born February 4, 1984. They were both born in Montreal
at the Montreal General Hospital and Royal Victoria
Hospital respectively, but now live in Toronto at 177
'Hillhurst Boulevard. Avrille Anne Hamilton® {Bow) and
Winston have three children, JTennifer Katherinég, born
January 25, 1977 at North York General Hospital, James
Aarong, born February 14, 1979 and Alison Marieg, born
September 24, 1984, the latter two at the Toronto
General Hospital. They live at 25 Astor Avenue. Their
two older children are being educated in French at Sacre
Coeur School (near Bloor and Sherbourne). This year
Jennifer enters the gifted class.

Hopefully the years will add considerably to this

generation.
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Notes

Francois Richard and cuilliaume Bourgeolis were
both deputies for the Acadians of Annapolis Royval
whose duties were not carried out to the satis-
faction of the Council. For this they were im-
prisoned and put in irons. It would be inter-
esting to know the connection between these men
and John Hamilton because one normally chooses
close friends or relatives to be godparents of
one's children. The incident is mentioned in the
Public Archives of Nova Scotia publication volume

3, page 159, 160, 161 and 165.

Cape Cod Hamilton genealogy as concerned this re-
search and gathered from New England Historical and
Genealogical records. Chart is ° Biblical

Quaker names not Scottish.

The early Scottish method of naming children was to

name the eldest son after the paternal grandfather,
the second son after the maternal grandfather and
the third son after the father. Likewise the
oldest daughter was named for the maternal grand-
mother, the second daughter for the paternal grand-
mother and the third daughter for the mother. This

can sometimes be helpful. Cape Cod Hamiltons did

not use this method.
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Military in Early Annapolis Royal

Early British (Scottish) Military Personnel in
Annavolis Royal named "Hamilton" - both in early inde-
pendent companies and in the 40th Regiment formed in
1717 - remaining in Nova Scotia until 1766. Many were
from Earl of Portmore's Regiment of Foot and under

Captain Richard Philivpps.

st Generation

Othe . Si.

Earlier of Earl of Portmore's Regiment of Foot. Ensign
June 16, 1710, Lt. August 9, 1718, Captain Lt. July 8,
1734, Captain September 3, 1739, Major January 30, 1745,

Lt. Col. and Lt. Governor of Newfoundland until 1766.

John Hamilton

Born 1702 - contemporary of Otho - a Lt. in Earl of
Portmore's Regiment of Foot. Naval officer in 1734

and a deputy collector of customs at Annapolis Royal.
Remained many years. He may have been the John Hamilton
who rejoined the 40th in 1753 as a Captain and who
painced the earliest pictures on record of the Nova
Scotia forts, now in the National Archives. It is

doubtful however because the painter left in 1765 to

join the 6lst Regiment and was active until 1777!; at

which time the first John mentioned would have been 72!

Not likely.




Thomas Hamilton

Ensign before 1715 - recommissioned in 1715 at St. James

London, England to serve at Annapolis Royal. In 1715 he
Hamilton

replaces Othopin Captain John William's Company and is

out of the Company in 1716 at some time during the vear,

probably to Jjoin the 40th Reg't.

William Hamilton

A Lt. to Captain Melville, February 17, 1712 (resigned
June 30, 1714). 1In 1713 he is sent to Boston as a
courrier to Governor Hunter. He was a lst Lt. under
Col. Richard Philipps - earlier of Earl of Portmore's
Regiment of Foot. He is replaced by Lt. John Hamilton

in 1714 who also served under Captain Melville.

One of these three officers [not Otho) could have fathered
Thomas in Granville (across from Annapolis Royal) in 1714
or later. The John may have been the father of the "Jean",
baptized at St. Jean Baptiste parish in 1716, at the

age of two years.

2nd Generation

John and Otho Hamilton, sons of Otho, Sr. -

1. John - ensign 1742 Lt. (circa 1745) deduced from
deed of property, Captain March 27, 1753, went to

Waterford, Ireland, to retire in (17667?)
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4.{a) Sgt. Henry Hamilton, 1745 and Henry Hamilton

5.

Otho, Jr.;, ensign 1744, Captain June 26, 1754, and

Major 1761.

A John, Jr., (son of naval officer ?) 1754 quarter-

master, February 26, 1755 quartermaster ensign
June 28, 1755, Lt. February 28, 176l - gone in

1766. (Granted land on Deer Island in 17677)

John Archibald, ensign July 1, 1755

(private man) 1741.
Private Thomas Hamilton 1752 of Captain Fothering-

ham's Company at Halifax, Col. Hopson's Regiment
with 40th and with Otho, Jr. (Lt.) and Ed
Handfield (Private) all of Annapolis Roval - I

believe he was the Thomas of this family.

Lt. Thomas Hamilton 1759-61 of Captain Jabez

Snow's companv stationed at Annapolis Roval -
thev were Massachusettes militia relieving the

40th Regiment who were elsewhere.

L.

Lt. John Hamilton of 40th in 1780 married Mary

Winniet of Annapolis Royal.

*

Sgt. Henry Hamilton — Sgt. Major of 40th received

Loyalist land in New Brunswick. He may be a brother




of Thomas' There were also:

Lt: Thomas Hamilton both in marines and

serving at the same
and lst Lt. Thomas Hamilton time for a period.

I believe they were
Massachusettes people.

At any rate I have included all these names and genera-
tions to show how many Hamiltons there were (from
Scotland). That regiment remained in Nova Scotia nearly

fifty years and half of their personnel were married to

Acadian girls.
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Note

Second Generation - Nova Scotia Land Transactions

~ Digby deeds at P.A.N.S. vols. 693, 694 1A and

1B of 697 and 3A and 3B of 698

Archibald2

Land grants: Lot 44 at Sandy Cove in 1784 (100 acres in
Digby Township)
Lot #1 on Water Street letter Y in 1784
at Digby Town
large property North of Gulliver's Road
between Lot 1 and Digby Town
Land grant in Granville 1779
1801 - to Archibald? and his heirs - 100
acres
1801 - son of Archibald? -~ Archibald® -
100 acres in Digby Township
Sold land October 4, 1794 to Alex Thompson
on Water Street. I believe the Post Office
riow stands there.kV*LW“L““f\

Sales = 1779 to Ebenezer Worthvlake - house and land

in Annapolis Roval (see deed note b)
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Sale

Johnz:

John2

- 1785 for 84 land on south west side of the

Cove from Fred Herndorf of Digby

4

1794 - town property lot 1 on Water Street -
letter Y to Alex Thompson. Sale completed

after Archibald's® death.

received lot 46 on the Fundy side at Sandy Cove -

probably 100 acres.

Sale:

Sale:

1790 May 8, lot in town of New Edinburgh County of
Annapolis to Captain John Taylor of township of
Digby for 2% 10° lot #3 letter I - 10 acres.

John could sign his name but his wife Mary could
not. This lot bounded by the street on the west,
Jacob Cornwell on the south, Captain J. Taylor on

the east and Jacob Warner on the west.

1804 to James Van Velzor his acreage at Sandy
Cove for 20f - it did not contain the point and
access to the Cove on the Fundy side. He had
four children. John Margeson christened at
Sisaboo, August 13, 1786 in the Anglican Church.
Peter christened at Sisaboo, August 27, 1788 in
the Anglican Church, Alice christened at New
Edinburgh, July 20, 1790 in the Anglican Church.
Hannah christened at Sisaboo, September 23, 1792

in the Anglican Church.




The latter married a Henry Snyder, Jr. and had two
sons; George Wallace Snyder and John Sidney Snyder.3
The Matrgesons were loyvalists who came from Boston on
the "Charming Molly" to Nova Scotia in the 1760's.
Henry Snyder was one of Knyphausen's troops {Hessian)
and was granted Lot 21 in Digby County. Lot #19
became Marshaltown. The marriage of Hannah Hamilton
is in the records of the parish of Trinity Digby.
"Henry Snyder, Jr. (yoeman) to Hannah Hamilton,
spinster, both of this parish (by license) January
25, 1819". Their children were christened there

as well. George Wallace Snyder baptized November

3, 1819, born August 12, 1819 and John Sidney

Snyder baptized 1823, born August 25, 1822.

Henry”:

Henry2 ~ son of Thomas'ﬁL has no record of receiving land

or selling land except for lot 45 on the Fundy Side at
Sandy Cove - probably 100 acres in the 1784 grant. T
cannot separate Henry2 from Henry3 - Henry2 being
Archibald's brother and Henry3 his son. Because of the
lists of Stephen Fountains customers it would seem to
confuse the issue. He lists Henry and Archibald 1788-1797.
But Archibald’ was dead in 1794! The children Alfred and

James could have been his and not those of Henry3.

In the charts I believe the Henrys are as marked but I

am not certain.




Third Generation Land Transactions

Nova Scotia land transactions copied from PANS

land records

Henry? son of Archibald? is well recorded by his
land transactions and one petition of 1808 in which
he, Stephen Fountain, and twenty-seven others halt
the granting of marsh land at the head of St. Mary’s
Bay to Capntain Fred Williams. This land later

became public lands.

A brief summary of these deeds cover a long period

of time and much property.

In 1804 Henry3 buys from Rufus Rice for 20f% n.e.
end of lot 33 on south side of Sandy Cove.

In 1806 Henry3 buys from Archibald Hamilton3 land
at Sandy Cove.

In 1806 Henry3 buys from Alex McGreqor (yeoman)
and Katherine, his wife, for 20&£ 100 acres at
Sandv Cove.

In 1808 Henry3 buys from James Hamilton3 for 20
lots 32 and 33 (inherited land) at Sandy Cove.

In 1811 or 1812 Henry- buys from Jeremiah>

Hamilton for 80X land (inherited] at Sandy Cove.




In 1818 James3 buys from James Carty of Digby
Neck for 5& part of lot 33 at Sandy Cove.

In 1818 Henry3 sells to Thomas West Crowell of
Sandy Cove for 725F lots 32, 33, 43, 44,

400 acres in all. This transaction mentions

12 sguare feet exempt because of the grave of
his father Archibaldz. The only graves I found
there last summer was on lot 35 near the water on
the former Dixon (Thomas'l partner) property.
Henry had buried his father on his farm thereby
keeping this spot unsold. Reel 6983B page 102,
103 and 104.

In 1822 Henry buys from Thomas West Crowell for
534F 155 and 6 p lots 28, 32, 33, 44, 516 acres

in all. PANS reel 998, page 406.

Land transactions of James3 (blacksmith of Digby

and St. Marv's Bay, later at Lubec, Maine.}

In 1808 James3 buys 100 acres from James Liett's
estate half of lot 35 at St. Mary's Bay by auction.
In 1808 James> sells to Henry3 for 204 lots 32 and
33 at Sandy Cove.

Im 1815 James3 sells to William Smith for 204 land
on south side of St. Mary's Bay.

In 1817 James3 buys from Fred Thibault for 1002
land on south side of St. Mary's Bay.

In 1818 James3 sells to Francis Melancon for 68 15s

1and on south side of St. Mary's Bay. This deed




exempts 12 square feet where Henry's father
Archibald? is buried.
In 1818 James3 sells to James Allen of Digby Neck

property.

Land transactions of Archibald3'Hamilton

In 1803 Archibald” buys from Charles McNeil 3 acres
at Freeport on Digby Neck.

In 1804 Archibald3 buys from Francis Ryerson lot 2
on Long Island near Grand Passage.

In 1806 Archibald3 sells to Henry3 land he inherited
at Sandy Cove.

In 1807 Archibald’ sells to Balthasor Israel one
farm lot and one fishing lot. At this time his

wife Magdalene Israel was still alive. Much later

he moved to Whitby, Ontario with his family.

Jeremiah” (yeoman) son of Archibald’

In 1811 Jeremiah sells to Henry his brother part
of lot 32 and lot 33 bequeathed to him by his
father Archibald’ for 70&

John37son ‘of‘Ar‘ch‘i’b‘ald2

He went to Blue Hill, Maine.

From these land transactions we can deduce that:

Archibald2 son of'Thomasl lived at Sandy Cove




7b.

and Digby Town, and Annapolis Royal.

John2 son of Thomasl lived at New Edinburgh and
Sisaboo south of St. Mary's Bay.

Henry2 son of Thomasl may have lived for a time
but probably went to New Brunswick as an ex
Sargeant Major of 40th Regiment. &About that I

can only conjecture.

Archibald3 son of Archibald2 lived at Long Island,
Digby Co.

Henry3 son of Archibald2 lived at Sandy Cove and
bought large tracts.

James3 son of Archibald2 lived at St. Mary's Bay,
Digby Co. {went to South Lubec Maine)

Jeremiah3 son of Archibald2 lived at Sandy Cove
Digby Co. {(went to South Lubec, Maine).

John3 son of Archibald2 lived at ? but went to

Maine and married.

Ontario Land Grants

From the land grant petitions at the National

Archives in Ottawa we learn that Thomas3

had gone
to Upper Canada in the Niagara area about 1796, was
granted 600 acres of land but was unable to claim
it because of illness, went then to York, where,

as a blacksmith he requested a town lot (granted

in 1805 on the North side of Market Street (Welling-




ton Street between Bay and Yonge) - was given lot
#3 between Archibald Thompson and Richard Ferguson.
His next petition was in 1806 when he was an inn-
keeper, in 1808 when he was a marchant. From April
1809 to 1810 he was deputy sherriff of York at 15.F
7s 6d. In the 1831 petition of his son, Thomas
Gilbert4 he revealed that his father was coroner of
York and that he himself was 34 with two children

and wasa carpenter by trade.

These many petitions of Thomas and all his children

make fascinating reading in the National Archives

in Ottawa. Some available are:

Thomas3 March 24, 1801 A0l12-H5/42
Jan. 13, 1807 H8/62 vol. 226 film C2046

Apr. 19, 1808 H9/4 vol. 226 film C2046
(200 acres granted)

Thomas Gilbert? 1831 H16/59 vol. 233A C20 p. 300,
299, 298 notes on William Archibald .

33A {(notes on William Archibald4)
c20 p. 300, 299, 298

Alexander Howe® 1821 H/13 film C2048
Horatio Nelson® 1828 H/15/47 film C2050
Sidney Smith4 1836 H/19/90 film C2095

William Archibald? 1825 (Nov. 12), 1827 H/14/187
Film C2049

Alex Howe4 1819 H/12/85

Alfred H4 1832 H/17/37 €2051 film (from Nova




Tal.

8.

13.

14.

15.

L

1Fe

Scotia son of Henry2 or Henry3)

This is not a complete file.
See note 3. ¢ =%

See note 3. ;

"Life in Upper Canada 1781-1841" by Dean Fink,
page 68.

nPown of York 1815-1834" by Edith G. Firth, page
LE7's .

nTown of York 1815-1834" by Edith G. Firth, page
77 n.

nporonto of 0ld" by Scadding, page 393,

List of land Petitions (see 7b note) .
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/4“¢#1 ) T was often told by fether that members of the family had

Lot I, on water street.Y;Aupon

served on the British side in the American Revolutionary War, and,

after the acknowledgment of the independence of the States by Grest
Britain, gave up everything in the United States and came to Nova
scotia w1th the Loyalists.

I have been endeavoring to find some infomation of an

officiel nature regarding our United Empire Loyelist connection;

and, recently some success has attended my efforts.

I have found thet. a remnant of the "Book of Proceedings”,
kept by the "Board of Agents” while locating loyalists in the tewn
of Dighy, Nove scotia, during the years 1783;4;5, was fourd in en
old building at TWeymouth, erected by ome of the loyalists of that
place, whose sister merried & Digby veteran. _Unfortunately these
records remeined in the hends of private persons, insteed of being
placed in the custody of the proper officiels.

In this book "Archibald ilton" appears as the owner of

?%g he hed a dwelling. I under-
stand thet,in the record they have, there 1s & miniature drawing

specifying whether the dwellings were two story edifices, or other—

wise.  In sddition to this, e grant passed to Archibeld Hamilton,

Henry Hamilton and John Hemilton, in connection with &_lerge number
of others, in the year IB0I, covering 91,632 acres in the City of

Dighy, ¥.S., &end the recital in it shows that it wes given for thelr

loyalty ‘to the British Crown. "

¥
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103

2

My fether'’s father, who was Thomes Hamilton, was the oldest
menber of his family, (his father being Archibeld Hamilton, referred
to as the owner of Lot I Water St.Y, Jand came fronm Ho;a Scotia to
Upper Caneda, srriving in York, now Toronto, in 1793, the same year
a8 Govermor Simcoe arrived and founded the village of York. .

Archibald, Henry and John Hamilton named in the grant in
IB0I are younger brothers of father's father. I ugderstand that
the names of some of them apreared in en esrlier U.ZE.l.grent of
lands in Nova Scotia, but I have not obteined the details of it yet.

As fer as Thomas Hamilton waes concerned, he was one of the
leading Masons in York at the close of the I¥th Century, and after
having occupied the position of ilaster in amother Lodge, he was one
of the originel members of the Toronto Lodge No.8, formed in |
Januery 26th I8II, of which he was appointed Master; and on St.
John's Day I8II, an Addr ‘7é%made by him Eo tge Lodge. A Committg
was sppointed to draft a2 reply "to the AddrasaA This I hé?i read,
but, unfortunately, the address itself has not vet been found. 2
Possibly some dsy it may. It appears, however, that the bretherm
thought very highly of it, as in the reply, which they took a few
' months epparently tc consider, they are most eulogistic in their
reforence to it. Apperently he had touched upon most of the social
questions of the day, including the tempersance question, &and froﬁ
the reply generally it would appear to have bLasn quite & masterly
review of‘tﬁe situation at that time. k

- - el




In eddition to the masonic cereer of Thomas Hamilton,

T have found the following official record regerding his military
serviapve during the war of I8IZ2;-
"Hamilton, Thomas.- Capt. in the 3rd Regt.York Militia, on

27th April, I6I2, in one of the Battalions Compeniea. Did duty at'
York from September, I8I2 to 27th April, ISI3, when taken prisoner

of war, at surrender of York, and released on parole on the same day"

In addition to this reccrd, however, he was &t Jueenstor —
Heights, and at the time he was taken prisoner &t the s#ege of
York was Severely wounded, from the effects of which he never
recovered, &lthough he lived, or lingered, for some years afterwards.
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¥ . “In a writer beloved for the kindliness™
|r ‘of. his ‘laughter,” 'the authors write, “the
{: presence of this deliberate belittling of
% “sone human beings as Inherently-inferior
£ | is most unattractive. In these. attitudes he
"‘f ‘was a man of his time, but’one can expect
-'a writer of Leacock’s stature to transcend
- such ideas.”
! Such authorial admonmons, however, |
. are rare, Was Leacock also a' misogynist?
“Women need not more freedom but
“less,” he wrote in 1915, “social policy.
. should proceed from the fundamental -
truth that women are and must be de-
- pendent.” Women should be.restricted to

{" the roles of wives and mothers; their pr F
{ “ence in the universities was sheer folly.
i -Women, he said, could not, reason or t.hlnk
~'butonlyargue. feaifit oo R
Curiously-enough, Leacock, who mvario
y ably carried a flask of whisky in his pock-
B et, was just as unrelenting in-his opposi-.
» tion' to prohibition. It was, he sai dlS'
, cnmmation against the poor who dep
t&. drinking as a solace for their ow
sta He was unmindful of the harmful
effects that alcohol had induced ‘in his -
own father. =
+/" Other questions remain unanswered
_His family life with his wife Beatrix and T,
son- Stevie is cloaked in mystery. There
are hints that Beatrix's death from breast
cancer in 1925 left Leacock with pangs of
remorse that he had not been .apprecia- ¥y
1'tive enough of her: according to his niece,
Beatrix also had to. forgive him for "hls
occasional philanderings.” v

v

s ":’“
_(’Ji;'ﬁ
-rv..-.n -u‘ — el

child who never-grew more than four feet stm above with h
tall. Apparently “demoralized” by his fa- o mo

ther's deat.h in- 1947, Stevie behaved rath-
er efratically, selling off Hlec&s‘ of hisTa~ underneath? What, for éxample; lay be-~
ther’s furniture in hls Orillia home, dress- ' neath his eryptic allusion to his rélation- -
::r; slorag‘i,leyﬁ il;l;&l:g S:fmherg? taf; ship with'his father as.*‘a shadowed,
§ - W 3 ore
himself died in his sleep in 1974, .. - . g&g:g'fa}mly life mtol \Yh‘lch I need not
.~ The dynamic of Leacock’s inner life is oy T I
“ hidden from us.. Leacock appeared to “The individual whe emerges rrom t.hzs
have been blessed with that slightly eccen-  blography has the patched-together feel
tric equilibrium which is prepared to look of" a character assembled mechanically
on all vaganes of human behavmr with a from chronologlcal facts, quotations from

o R T &

il 5 Lol

in
sangume, mocking eye. But

3 ol
Lo RE O il

. _ Famlly ties: Yousef Karshs 1939 portrait of Stephen Leacock, lnset
" Stevie, on the other hand, was a sickly shows him the image of twinkfng wisdom, a view not shared by his. son,

fga \TEr oo

,Deacock’s life and it prowdes useful sum-.!
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Ch 3
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Montreal in- 1916.

his: work and others dacrjptlons of him.
3 communicates the outward events of '

..!,.....n.M

maries of his work. But there is little real }

creation of Leacock’s character, little in

the way of critical examination. The book !

. reads like a company report made by‘g
“chairmen who, while giving us the facts,.

vd

view them nearly always in the light i
which is favorable to the firm.
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Related Genealogies

(Greenley & Hollingsworth)

Sheila Ruth Hollingsworth Hamilton (Mrs. R. Ian Hamilton)

Sheila's mother is Evelyn Greenley born April 17,
1809 in Surrey, England. Her maternal grandparents were
Ruth Richardson of Leeds, England and Henry Greenley of
Leeds. The former died at 72 and the latter at 43,
Besides Evelyn, the children of this union were Xen
Samuel Greenley born June 21, 1924 or 1925, Kathleen
born June 13, 1907 married Neil Bergstrom and died July
1983 at 76 and Marjorie born March 12, 1914 and married
Donald Ball. Some of these people live in Vancouver or

Victoria, British Columbia.

Sheila‘'s father was Alfred James Hollingsworth,
born October 3, 1904 in Wormsley, England near Leeds and
died in the Sault (Ontario) January 14, 1974. His parents
were Amelia (Emily) surname unknown, and Harry (Henry)
Hollingsworth both born in England. Sheila's father was
one of nine children. They are Harry, Ron, John, Emily
and Cecile all of British Columbia with thas first two
named in Vancouver. Alfred James who was called "Holly"

was a commercial pilot with Algoma Steel.

1¢7




June Hebert's Genealogy

; 1 ; ;
Antoine Hebert™ married to Genevieve Lafranc came

to Port Royal, Nova Scotia in the 1640's. Three children

were born here, Jean, born 1653, Catherine, born 1656 and
Jean, born 1658. They came from the village of Martaizég,

La Vienne near the Loire valley in France.

Their oldest son Jean2 married Anne Doucet whose
grandfather Germain Doucet was a major in the French
forces and commander of the fort. They were married
circa 1676 at Port Royal later living at Grand Pré in
Acadia.

Their son René3

was born in 1680, married Marie

Anne Boudrot in Grand Pré&, Acadia, circa 1704. At the
time of the Acadian Expulsion this family was sent to
Connecticut and Massachussettes. In 1768 at the termina-
tion of the expulsion they walked overland from Boston,
Massachussettes to Laprairie (Quebec). René& died two

days after their arrival at the age of 82 and was the

first Acadian buried in the area.

The seventh child of René3 and Anne was Olivier4
born in 1723, married in 1745 to Cecile Dupuis at Grand
Pré and returned to Canada from Boston in 1768. It was

with this son's family that René walked to Laprairie.




Olivier's family consisted of nine children, the voungest
Marie, born in 1768 either before during or after the
trek to Canada. She must have died because other than

her birth there are no records of her.

Olivier4 and Cecile's seventh child was Paul, born
1764 in Massachussettes during the exile. He married
Marie Charlotte Martin on November 23, 1789 in St. Philippe
de Laprairie in Quebec. My family descended from their
oldest son Pierre OlivierS, His younger brother'Paul5
who was a printer, died of cholera along with his two sons
Paul and Francois David - both doctors. This was pro-
bably the same epidemic that caused the death of Thomas

Hamilton's3 wife Anne,

Pierre Olivier5 born in St. Philippe de Laprairie
married July 19, 1824 Flavie Tremblay. They had many
daughters but only two sons the vounger of whom was
Edmonds. He was a farmer, as was his father, but Edmond
moved to Sherrington, Quebec and later to Havelock,

Quebec and St. Chrystosome, Quebec.

Edmonds, my great grandfather, helped his father
until his mid-twenties when he obtained land in
Sherrington; Havelock near Huntington, Quebec;:next at
St. Chrystosome. At this point I lost track of him.

On October 14, 1856 he married Elise Babeu at St.

1o




Philippe. She was ten years his junior and in poor health.
The census shows they lived in a one story house with only
six acres cultivated. When she died young they had three
sons, my grandfather Alexandre Jean7, Joseph7 the eldest
and Sefroi the middle child. Edmond6 remarried to Adele
Provost at St. Jacques Laprairie, April 18, 1864. Late in
life they may have gone to Ottawa or the St, John, Quebec,

region.

Their third son Alexandre Jean7 was my grandfather
born December 28, 1860 and baptized January 4, 1861 in
Sherrington, Quebec. About the age of twenty he left
his parents in St. Chrystosome and went to work in a
lumber camp in Northern Michigan where he became the
foreman of the operation. He married Jean (Angelique)
Beauchamp at Newberry, Michigan, on August 18, 1890. She
was the only child of Alex Beauchamp and Jean Hargraves
(a widowed Morman lady formerly married to Robert Weir).
After her mother died at the birth of the second child
her father kept her until school age when he took her to
Bay City to be educated at the age of eight years. My
grandfather was called Jack and not Alexander7 while my
grandmother was known by Jean and Lil and not Angelique.
Her father remarried later and had a son, Louis, but in
1882 she is with her father in Bay City at Mrs, Joanna

McMullen's boarding house and her father in the census

is listed as a sailor,




Alexander Jean and Angelique Beauchamp had six

chiidren, the third of whom was my father, Clifford
Alexandera, born February 28, 1898 in Cook's Mills,
Michigan. Their other children were Joseph, George Louis
(killed on the C.P.R. when only 18, he slipped on ice
while flagging the train as a brakeman), Walter Felix of
Buffalo, New York, John Anton of Detroit and Gladys

Marie, all dealt with at length in the separate Hebert
genealogy. 2As a young boy my father came to the Sault,
lived on the 4th line, 2nd line (at Morgan's store cornerj
and Huron Street. As a young married man he went to
Pontiac, Michigan to work for Ford Motor Company, returned
at the time of the depression. He worked for Algoma Steel,
was self-employed in construction and owned a drapery
business on the corner of Bruce Street and Algoma. He
died November 30, 1982 at Hotel Dieu Hospital in Windsor,
Ontario, as a delayed result of being struck by a car
while crossing Highway 17. He married Viola Marie Agnes
Therrien of the Sault, September 2, 1920 in the St.

Ignatius Church.

They had two children, June Gertrude Heberta, born
June 30, 1921 in the Sault and Clarence Clifford, born
March 3, 1924 in Pontiac, Michigan. The former married
Malcolm S.M. Hamilton?, May 4, 1946 in Kingston, Ontario,

the latter married Agatha Holmes of the Sault at Fort

Benning, Georgia, during World War II. He later married




Grace Darragh (Diotte) of the Sault in North Bay, Ontario:.
These Hamilton offspring are dealt with in this genealogy
8th generation. The children of Clarence C. Hebert8 and

Agatha were Ernest and Deborah, both born in Detroit. The

latter now lives in Winter Haven, Florida.




Benson Genealogy

Joshua A. Benson married Julia Anne Benson in St.
John, Newfoundland in the United Church. There were
four sons: Stanley, Duter, Kenneth (their second youngest

in Winnipeg) and Clifford, who died as a child.

Stanley born in 1888 who died at 70 or 71
married Mary Agnes Stewart, December 14, 1894 in London,
Ontario. He was of the United Church and she was a Roman
Catholic. Her mother was Sarah Doyle of London, Ontario
and her brothers were Fred Stewart of London the father
of Dr. Jack Stewart, Leo Stewart, chief of police in
Winnipeg and Hugh Stewart of Winnipeg. Stanley Benson
and Mary Agnes Stewart lived in Montreal where he was an
accountant. They had two children. Stewart Rex Benson
and Mrs. Marion Benson (Coomber)} with whom Mary Agnes

lived in her later years (at Kemptville, Ontario).

Stewart Rex Benson, born August 1, 1914, in Winnipegq,
married Beryl Victoria Thorburn, born May 24, 1920, in the
Town of Mount Royal in the Roman Catholic Church. They
lived there where Gary, born July 25, 1947 and Heather,
born June 3, 1951 were reared. Heather married Malcolm
Peter Hamilton8 and their children are in the 9th genera-

tion genealogy, Gary married many times and has two children

Scott, born November 7, 1980 and Meghan, born April 30, 1985.




Thorburn Genealogy

John Thorburn was a teacher at Montreal High who
married Esther Robinson of Lachute, Quebec. Their children

were Amby, George Alex, John, Arthur, Esther and Jim.

George Alex, born October 22, 1879, died November 1938,
married Maud Harriet Smith, born October 10, 1885, died
January 16, 1972 (73?)Y. She was from Bournemouth, England.
The family name had been changed (when entering Canada)
from Goodchild to Smith. This family produced six children;
Norman, who married Myrtle Doig with George Alex and Linda
as offspring; Barbara married to Roderick James Harley (no
children); Elaine married to Robert John Hamilton of
Montreal (2 girls, Joy and Cheryl); Beryl, mentioned above,

and Sidney a bachelor and George Norman also a bachelor.

Robinson Family

Esther Robinson who married John Thorburn was from
Lake Louisa near Lachute, Ouebec. Her parents had three
sets of twins of which she was one. Her father was
zachariah Robinson who committed suicide at Lake Louisa.
Her mother was Esther Clarey (Watchorn) who bore Amby of
Lachute, Zachariah of Brownsburg, Quebec (whose wife was

Lily% Esther mentioned above, (Isobel?), Elizabeth of




Tampa, Florida, Cassie, Archie and Mary Jane who reputedly

smoked a pipe:

Smith Family

Maud Harriet Smith (above) was born in Bournemouth,
England of Ann Lambeth and George Goodchild (later Smith).
She was one of eight children Ernest, Florence, George
(killed in World wWar I), Maud, Edith, Bill, Harold and
Pred. Lake Louisa people were mostly Presbyterian and

Methodist
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D3 Mgrs. W.D. PowELL TO GEORGE MURRAY
[T.P.L., Powell Papers]

York April 13th 1817

. . . the School for Females will I apprehend meet with too many
difficulties;—Mrs Goodman!® has made her arrangements to leave
Quebec and bring different Teachers with her; but at present all is at a
stand from the want of an House proper for such an establishment; as
an inhabitant of this place convinced of the great want of such a School
I regret the difficulty; but I confess for my own individual satisfaction,
I should prefer placing Anne!’ under the care of our inesumable
young Friend . . . the Lady who wishes to take this important charge

upon herself is very respectable; but from what I have heard does not

possess that extreme vigilance respecting the conduct of her Pupils
out of the School Room, which I think full as necessary as attention to
them while they are in it;—another thing is objectionable to me; there
can in this place be no distinction of classes;—this objection does not
arise from Aristocratic pride, but from the conviction that the vulgar

by Richmond, Jarvis, Adelaide, and Church Streets. It cost £560 and was a two-
storey frame building, painted blue in 1818. In 1829 it was moved 10 the
corner of Jarvis and Lombard Streets and was used in 1830 by Upper Canada
Colicge. From 1834 to 1864 it housed the Toronto Grammar (High) School.
10Mrs. 'Goodman conducted a girls” school in Quebec City before coming to
York in 1817. She opened ber school in John Mills Jackson’s house, moving to
Stephen Jarvis’ house in 1818. In 1822 the school was taken over by Mrs.
Cockburn, and later by Miss Purcell. In 1831 there were twelve teenape girls
boarding at the school (T.P.L., Reminiscences of Mrs, Elizabeth (Goslee)

. Grover).

1l1Anne Murray Powell (1805-1883) was brought up by her grandparents, Judge
and Mrs. W, D. Powell. She married Dr. William Charles Gwynne.




Thompson - McCallum Families

James McCallum came to Quebec City, Quebec from
Scotland about 1785. He was poor but industrious, man-
aging to amass a fortune before his death. From peddling
tinware he moved on to importing foreign wares and event-
ually owned ships, wharves and a brewery. Janet McCallum,
his wife, was not previously related to him. Some of their
children were James, Daniel, Colin, Duncan, John, David,
Catherine and Rosa. James, the eldest son, was my husbands
great great‘grandfaéher on his father's side. He married
Arabella Riggs Goodman of Quebec City, Quebec, whose
mother operated a girls' school there, later moving
it to York U.C. This Mrs. Goodman who held the girls
school first in Quebec City and later in Town of York was

great i
my husband's great greatAgrandmother He went to Toronto
allowing the business to be operated by his brother and
managers while he inherited a set income from the business.

They had seven servants and were very wealthy before they

lost everything.

His brother Daniel who operated the brewery until
its demise moved to Ontario where he was obliged to start
a4 boarding house in order to survive. What James did I
do not know. I do know, however, that his daughter,

-

: : . : _ *
Jesslie Georgina, married Christopher Joseph Thomwson on

August 25, 1855, The latter was born in England, March

119




17, 1817 and died in Toronto, August 1, 1884. They had
issue; Clare Jessie, born April 28, 1856 and lived in
Toronto; Christopher William, born June 26, 1858, married
Jean Craig and lived in Toronto; Georgina Frances, born
October 27, 1860, married Henry C. Hamilton5 and lived in
Toronto and Sault Ste Marie; Joseph Parkins, born November
l, 1862, married first Mary Walmsley who died 1890 and
secondly Eleanor Weldon, and lived in Toronto; Maurice
Goodman, born 1865, married Gertrude E. Pike, lived in
Toronto; Blanch Arabella Ellen, born 1867, died 1868;
Frank Cuthbert, born 1869, married Margaret L. Towers (of
Jaseph v Elearors Secund — .
the Sault). Thei;\youngest daughter Audrey,married to
Maynard Robinson, donated the letters of her grand-
mother Jessie Georgina McCallum Thompson which are in the

section (notes) on Henry S. Hamiltone, Frank and family

lived in Toronto; Ida Arabella, born 1872, died 1874




MRS. HAROLD B. HUTCHISON

=== gl B, SUTCHISON
Mrs. Harold B. Hutchison, who was born Mabel Thompson, will be
100 years old on February 10, 197S,

She was born in her parents' home on the grounds of old Upper
Canada College, Simcoe Street, Toronto, where Christopher
Thompson, her father, was a Master for 42 years and her uncle,

Dr. F. W. Barron, the Principal,

Her father died when she was 10, leaving a young family of 6 sons
and 3 daughters. They moved to South Parkdale, Toronto, where
she lived for many years. She remembers the horse-drawn street
cars which went as far west ag Gladstone Avenue. She spent many
happy times sailing and ice sailing on the Lake at the foot of

Dunn Avenue with her brothers.

When she was 18 she married Harold B. Hutchison. They attended
St. Annes Anglican Church for many years where she was made a

Dominion Life Member of the Womans Auxiliary.

After the death of her husband, Mrs. Hutchison went to live with
her daughter, Mrs. Roger Priestman in Thornhill and became a
member of Holy Trinity Anglican Church.

Unfortunately she fell and broke her hip while at her summer
cottage at Big Bay Point and she is now confined to a wheel
chair. she has loved music and good books. Her 4 sons and 3
daughters are all living. 'Ralph, Frank, Bruce, Ken, Betty,
Frances all in the Toronto district and Doreen in Vancouver. She
has eleven grandchildren, 17 great grandchildren and 2 great,

great grandchildren.

Her family zre holding a birthday tea for her at Extendicare Home
on Steeles Avenue at Leslie Street on Sunday, February 9th from
2 P.M. to 4 P.M. She is looking forward to seeing many old

friends as well as relatives.

She has already received congratulations from Pierre Trudeau,

the Prime Minister.
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THOMPSON - McCALLUM

The eighth child of Arabella (Goodman)

McCallum and James McCallum was Jessy Georgina,

who married Christopher Joseph Thompson August

25th 1885. He was born in England March 17th
1817 and died in Toronto August 1lst 1884,
They had issue:

(1) Clara Jessy born April 28th 1856,
lives at Toronto; (2) Christopher William

born June 26th 1858, lives at Toronto; married

”~Jﬁ%@J “aiiiﬂ_fiiiﬁiﬂ?(3) Georgina Frances born October

‘\\M - A F»«.-n..l.! Q‘J"‘{' bd AL (Giciwmen AN Temme fudor Vo B.C

=» 27th 1860, married Heno# C. Hamilton, lives at

Toronto; (4) Joseph Parkins born November lst

1862, married first Mary Walmsley who died 1890,

married second Eleanor Weldon, lives at Toronto;

(5) Maurice Goodman born 1865, married Gertrude
E. Pyke, lives at Toronto; (6) Blanch Arabella
Ellen born 1867, died 1868; (7) Frank Cuthbert

born 1869, married Margaret L. Towers, lives at

Toronto; (8) Ida Arabella born 1872, died 1874;

(9) Mabel Bessie born 1875, married Harold Bur-
ton Hutchinson, lives at Toronto; (10) Edwin

Barrett born June 19 1877, lives at Toronto,

married Florance M. McKay and had Frances Maud

Evelyn born 1909; (11) Reginald born March 2nd
1880.
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Thomas H. Mercer - U.E. Loyalist

The Mercers came from Pennsylvania and settled at

York Mills (see map). He had 100 acres at York Mills

with an additional piece on the north side of the York

Mills road. On the top of the hill he cleared the forest

for his farm. He was my husband's maternal great great

great grandfather.

Yonge Street ran north from *the bridge up OI¢ Yonge Street to the
top of the hill where Thomas Mercer, an Irishman, settled and cleared
his farm south of York Mills Road. The Mercer family drove all the
way from Pennsylvania in 1794 in a wagon with a cow tethered on
behind; when requesting land he was offered one hundred acres in ex-
change for his wagon.® Each early settler took his share of municipal
responsibilities, and in 1811 Thomas Mercer was elected foreman of the
Grand Jury which consisted of twenty-one men, including Samuel Heron
and Thomas Humberstone of York Mills.
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THCMAS MERCER, U. E. L.

from NIAGARA

BACK TO THE HUGUENOTS. (lst & 2nd generation)

Thomas Mercer born in Counfy Cown, Ireland, 1744.
Died at York Mills, 1829. Buried there.

Married Susan Jordon of Hillsborough, County Down,
Ireland. He came to America at New Jersey, from there he
went to Virginia. Then to Londonderry Township, Chester County,

Pennsylvania. His father was Lord Kercer, nephew of william

of Orange. They came to Holland from France among the Huguenots.

They went to England from Holland, 1688 and in 1690
to Ireland and fought with and under Prince of Qrange, and
fought and won the Battle of the Boyne at Carrick Forges. Then
they settled at Hillsborough. The Castle is still there stand-

ing in which Thomas Mercer was born.

Samuel was born, also his sisters Mrs. Ashbridge and
Mrs. Ketchem, in Chestér Counfy, Pennsylvania. gSamuel married
~nn Anderson. He died in 1830. Buried at Dixie.

Thomas was born in Philadelphia 1792 - died 1873.
Eis wife, Caroline 0'Reilly of Crummondville, near Niagarsa.
Both buried at York Mills.

Levi was born at Niagara, 1793 - died 1828. pMarried

Ann Ross, born in Guernsey Island, 1804 - died 1880, Buried

at Ross Farm, 4th line, Etobicoke.
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-» In _the first six montfls of that year, Canada’s troops took
part in two notable engagements—Saint-Eloj and Sanctu
Wood. On June 2, 1916, the city lost one of its leading soldiers, tak:

 31at, "
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thirty, including” two- officers— i
ICaptaln Flsher of”the 10th, and a
Captain wko-had hesn gone-through, |
R-of the 3rd Battalior, now proven fo be
Captain van der 3Smissen, in the dag- |}

- Major General M. S. Mercer, who had been a former com.
' manding officer of the Queen’s Own Rifles. He and Geperal
Yictor Williams had gone up to the front line on a tour of
Inspection. Two hours later, the heaviest bombardment ever

‘El‘ﬁl‘

THE DAYS OF PRIDE AND PAIN 225

made by the Germans on the Canadian lines came suddenly
down on the sector. General Mercer was killed in the artille
attack and General Williams was wounded and taken pris-
oner. Toronto moumed the death of the man who, it was said

by his admirers, was probably the most brilliant soldier the
city had contributed to the war. :

< P edEmas.
" ok

Faa g -1 b ST e ] i ¥ i

el IAwq'%§mmhe::pr_ .
perty bags of stuff that had been taken:.
off the dead the night before, when I
Jcame across & pass permit with ‘Gen-
4 eral Mercer’ migned on it. .Just think.,
faf ‘the excitement then, as. we be-
tlieved " he -was In the hands of the
un.; "F called Pionser Fange, as wa'
are together out searching the night:
 before, -and- he sald that must be. the:
‘tapot whera they:.apened. the machine. |
% gun on;us; i This ls”zbout: four hun=

e
to4 |

ey

¢

| They “were not:conténted puttng. the
machine gunsg.on i ua:. "“They even |
ssnt coel ‘hoxes over, and. some near
fones, tov. Anyway, by six o'clock we |

¥
1
.
1

§cept ‘one. boot and about -four’ (nches |
orsé.past of the lot~as we. had’

Jand we.iaw the’ epaulats’ with, crossed.

Ebody. in- a shell-hole Hll after  dark:]

(ot the body dragged .to’ a:sheil-hole
ot .a ‘leather®logging sticking: out zh’:
fihe worst. he Jot"as we. bad ||
jto-1i6 fice doww, shd- seraich Il weé'
§swords: and star..;I:thep-cot off - the'

about ‘five’ yards. from where ‘we .dug
git. out,- where it had been. burted ex- i
ud,’ That disinferring was really
t the-General's body uncovered, and [}
then ' we_searched “the body* agatn,
1 Genersl's, service coat and placed. the
3 We  Were 'Tiots go 'long «In "beating it

2 back; valthough ‘we: ‘aniother’ hot
§arive back In our. own' ljnes agaln. 4,
§ Genernl  Was Dnarmed. 50 75

# “1Whén we, 'gdt to Headquarter a{t‘ldi
Teported, you 'can think< for yourself]
how' the officers. 21k Tooked.” . Our new ¢
Colonel, 'Major™ Rae,from the- 3rd4
Battalion, came ont with us after dark
ahd-carried -the. body: in.c It was. santd
1o "General’ Mercer's : Divislon. s We
don’t; know-if i will .be, sent back
Tanada. .. The rest of his property: comy
-sisted of one pair of’ gold: spectacles:
‘{broken), are "broken. compass, oné
fbroken watch, . one _pair. of broken;
field glasses, one Sam Brown sling bel
femoke  bag;” “no. revolver . or sword.,
'There was not a more brave or. kindj
officer ever lived.. I-have, as you wil§
ow,” heard’ many discussions, -and
jthere is not d man.who was connected
th. the  General " in’ any: way - buf
ipeaks in Mghest way vl him:- Hy
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¢ "Cur g,reat-—nm:ﬁf...}herg gettled in o= .saz-say when he

i*'-st ‘como o this sonntry, aeféra the Deyolui ionary vare I do

aot mvﬁ how,long he stayed: thev-e. "Then ke went 1.¢ Yirginia and
stm;e& there sone years,-—I nni: inow bow long. %hey lost seven
eh:.ld*cn ~four little bahy g‘ir].s {two by the ners oi Jane ond two
by tnaznma of Elizabeth ~itley quit naning them ana* after anothor),
Thon they went {o Londonde |
vhera thsy xemined sona. {w '

S&Vnie\ T
lwyears Yemr 'rrmlfahgrwasoo'm

o ,t ms alﬂe his. sistsra»-A ot mxetm Aunt Ga%ble .and - mt _:~;.

l— \
l

ahhr:’u;e Then my grondfather ves bevn noxt, in ﬂ]iladnlpha
1 @:’uﬁ:, Lunt Hary varnanten . Uncls Iovi twas horn at the
-'3113.1 2 T s B ' : s
i ,'q "Our great grand.tat’ar cane {o York 1115 in 17'36 when
. &y gmﬁfatmr wag four years old. Our graat at—grand{ather
wau J...aru ifcrcer,. a nephow of King William, Pringe of (range, so
s wa £ hs £ifth gensration from him.  They went iate ‘n‘heland fr"m
Hollam in 1668, amd in 1890 Want into Iz‘eland and mnght thers
the _4.ttla of the Joyne at Jarrick I‘e'm.s. Thon x:hcy setiled in .
Bill sbomugh, and sone of the lercers are still thore. The castla
. is m;ih .. 'th.ere im yrhlchigraat-g-andfathar o8, boxXn., i .-
RO A "I got & copy £rom v:'wberry Hbrae hove (Ch..cano ), an_d
£ind t’zat Thomas Lercer and w i’e, Iandonderry Jo'ans » had ons '”-
son an-l three danghtors {Uni“ea Ste tas uensus 1'?90), g.r:a:icl also thnt
he hed ' over 2500 acras tmst ? I nan also get' o"eher records
there. : 1t ia on the north a}de af the C.ﬂzy I th:mk 1 eould
get the ‘“ienmond hiatory the:ee. :
‘ Pxtract ﬁ'oi }erw .L-*y}.or'a 131.?,91';

.% : ;" : .‘\-_.-

._‘*'

wwnship, Chegtor County, Pennsylvama,
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-James Psarson cgma to Canada from Pennaylvania in
the year A.D. 1800, was a son of Nathanisl Pearsom ang
Ann Pearson, his w;fa, who came to Canada from Pennsyl.
vania in A.D. 1801. Nathanlel Pearson diod_in 1814.
Nathaniel Pearson-was the only son of James Pearson who was
supposed to have been killed soms place between Juebac
and New Jersey on his return home after the War (fhe Ola
French War). He had one sister who married a man by the
nmme‘bf Hunﬁ and settled in the Tawnship of Moulton. The
children of Nathaﬁiol.and_Ann Pearson wero.Benjgmin, Joseph
William James, John, Sugan, Esther and Samu‘?i Ann
Pearson, wife of Nathaniel Pearson was a daughter of
William Bunting also of Ponnsylvania but formerly from
England and her mo ther* S name was Bidgood who came to

Pennsylvania from England with Will;am Penn. (Penn

il

settled Ponnsylvania in 1881).

Jane Pearson wife of James Pearson was a daughter

of Gabricl and Philadelphia Lount who came to Canada about |
|

the year 1811 from Pennsylvanin.. Gabriel Lount was former-
1y f"rom England. Pniladelphia Lount, wife of Gabriel
Lount was daughtar of Ellis Hughes of New Jergey. Her

* T\\"'Ce O; f-hase Sang wWEre a;rresf c& ll-’n AR Rﬂbtl\;un
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kil resldern for thepret 20 years.
mabe t*\dar for-more.than 80 years. ‘h.-
16 M r A rwime Maace, atatneh <Libesn'-d
{nnnﬁ.n Presbyortaii, Holis anrrived br
L hin- widow,who -wan 3fopuerly.” T Mixs
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' Corry, Peonayivanisi.and* i 9> Tivwin,
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| more: than uaua.l Intarest was..io wngrul.

‘A, Ilarbext E, ,Innn,‘, B, %
| at-law,of Toronto"'— Th eutmony “!’u

| Sykes, MLAZ;

1 mth ld!.l\!‘chlo

}inct,:Aled- ‘with 3 Fiho cul]e.ry Tequinits

e i B e
MAKRIAGE Bm.x.a ——L_s.. r.mnmgsin_i-
wood,l: the nudenw of M ;‘hl.}_lé:_-

cor, was' n'bhmw:th hghu&.. dnd. ,u.!lr
ovident lo the pauet-by thu:-mmtof

W e

The oi:ca.uon r??rn.u “the im.rrngo d]ul '
youngest daug\ter. i Minnie fondnn, r.o

perfolmed_by‘_ner..ll'. 2 Me&ngot, 1!',.&""‘ j
of the’™ Avondaleq. Preabytam:: gorch,
Tll.sonburg, at 8.30 pom. ¥ The s 60
the parlor, whxch hn.d ‘been e.nurely de-.mi
of its farniture for tlu occasion, " and Wit
complete!)‘ filled. m(h gueau, Iui'aruy |
striking nndt}nllunf* one, -i < The" taide
looked charmmg i’ her. "bridal robes of |
white satio, aad wu" well” inpoorted by
her ‘threa . bndeumalda “lh-.:Sehzn, cf
..nennde, Call 'snd I.he "Miwses Richard~
son and Brown, of Toronto.!‘_‘ “The duties
of groomsmen ware*'ably heharguihy
Messra; Maleolm S/ Mercer, B-A.,  FoH;"
and J. ‘Kylei" BA hum
ters- nt. l;w, all ol.Toronio

Tt

l’mveravty of Ton_‘onto, and mdu::a of
e At the' .conc_ln:wn ofthe
unplu] f“em ny 50 g'ue.-.[n* st dowm, to
an e]egat.tly sarved and’ semptuous rﬂ-
‘pasgtl:. “The bndal prgc—.nu ‘were nnner__.
ous, | cha.s‘te and custl;, and -vg_-ns"mred

raarblp clock; (RS fift of - M2 and Dirx.
.Wade, "of Simcoe: county, ‘andratt 'r'n-.]g= ab-
for a well appomted home, the gift of Mr.
¥red \lercer, gttt.ractad specisl attention.
Many; rare and costly arlicles from difer-
ent ;r.uts of tﬁvrorld all ‘bore Imumny
0 the high” csteem sinse whzcn the young.
hnde is held by Her frlcndn “A delighiial
evemng was spent h) all & p*om;r.mt
Ieaturo of n]:uch was the inmmien]’ Taelec-
tions’ gwen by Mu: Brown, gf Tm.tlo
-aud Me.uri - andy ] y Mere:.r g.nj]__,
Birks: :IA nn:nber’of college glzu wera
rendered in’ 2 apfana:d" manzer” by‘ ﬂw’
l‘mrerstty men prenut. PrF. Birkey o[
London; 26d Miss Rlchnrdaon_,of Tomnfo
ably prended at’t p;pmno., The" h:ppy
young coupla dmva .off - lo Jngereolt; - tor

' take train for nn,c.utem tun", amid jhe
ahowen t.\f-. congralnlahous tnd“é’&’od ‘
wishes from their many friends, ¥ ll- was |
an eveul’. Tang to ba rememhered “with

pleasura by all who were prepent. 4
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Irwin Family

The Irwin family is of English extraction and is
. 5& cheﬂhri . s
descended from Jared Irwin who«asslsted William Penn in
laying out the city of Philadelphia. Jared, born in
County of Simcoe in 1840, married in 1860 Eliza Armitage.
'There were four children:
1) Herbert Edward, born 1862 in Simcoe county

2) Dr. Eli Pranklin of Weston (Dr. Frank)

3) Dr. James Walter (Spruce Creek, Penn.) called
just Dr.

4) Lenore married William Doxsee

H.E. Irwin, B.A. K.C.

He was clerk of the peace for the county of York
and is descended in both paternal and maternal lines from
pioneers of that section and bears a name that is well
known there and identified with much of the development

of the county. They were farming folk and Quakers.

He received his B.A. in 1885 from University of
Toronto and studied law under Sir William Muloch. Iun
1889 he married Minnie Strachan Mercer of Loyalist stock.
In 1890 he was elected president of the Literary and
Scientific Society of University of Toronto. In 1902 he
received his K.C., was very active in the Liberal BaEGN,

the Presbyterian Church and was a member of the executive
of the Lord's Day Alliance.
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Canadian Books

History and Geography of Annapolis County by Wilson.

"Historical and Genealogical Records of Colchester County"
by Thomas Miller.

"Genealogy of Queens County Families™ by T. Benten Smith
"Genealogy of Yarmouth Families" by G.S. Brown

"New Englanders in Nova Scotia" by Fred Crowell (New
England Genealogical Society, Boston, Mass.)

"History of Yarmouth"™ by J.R. Campbell and G.S. Brown.
"History of Kings County” by W.H. Eaton

"A Brief History of Bridgetown" by John Irwin, Vol. XIX
(Nova Scotia Historical Society)

"History of the County of Annapolis"™ by Calnek

Supplement of "History of the County of Annapolis" by
Savary.

"Catalogue of Published Genealogies of Nova Scotia™
Publication #2 of the Gen. Committee of N.S.H. Society
(60 pages)

"The Hamilton Family" by Anderson

"The Hamiltons of the Olivestob Heraldry" Nisbet (1742):
App 38

"The Hamilton family in America™ N.Y. 1913 James Andrew
Phelps.

"Scotch-Irish" by Parry

"Sundy Cove, the history of a Nova Scotia village" by
Mary Kate Bull and Henrv Osler Bull.

"History of North Brookfield Massachusetts" (p. 613-15) by
Temple

"The Petitcodiac" by E.C. Wright

New England History and Gen. Reg. X/IV p. 361-5

New York Gen. and Biog. Rec XX 62-5




"Memoirs of the house of Hamilton™ by Anderson

"aA History of Barrington Township" by Edwin Crowell

New England Historical Society publication April 1968
p. 144

Mrs. Owens Scrapbook (at P.A.N.S.}

"Three Centuries of Society in 014 Port Royal" by Mrs.
Isabella Owens.

"Acadiensis" Vol. TV (1897)

"The Romance of 0l1ld Annapolis Rovyal"” by Charlotte
Isabella Perkins (at P.A.N.S.}

"History of City of Halifax" by Akins

"The Quiet Adventurers in Canada" by Mrs. E.J. Turk
(settlers from Channel Islands)

"House of Hamilton" by George H. p. 887
"In Search of Scottish Ancestry" by Ed. Hamilton
"The Scotsmen in Canada" by Campbell Wilfred L.L.D.

"The First English Conquest of Canada" by Henry Kirbe
London 1871 film 971 H 2 bi.

"History of Grand Pré" by Herbin

"Annapolis Royal" by W.M. MacVicor

Passanger and Immigration lists index
Pre-Loyalist Migration Rev. MacKinnon

The Town of York 1815-1834 by Edith G. Firth

The Town of York 1793-1815 by Edith G. Firth
Toronto of 0ld by H. Scadding

Toronto in 1810 by Eric Wilfred Horenson

The Yonge Street Story 1793-1860 by F.R. Berchene
The Trail of the Black Walnut by G. Elmore Reaman

Toronto by M. Best

The Privileged Few by J. Lownsbrough




Canadian Archives (Ottawa)

Reel C 2217 Digby Trinity Anglican B 1786-1830 M1786-1834
D1786~1845.

Reel C 3027 -~ Granville BM & D 1720-1881

C 2031 All Saints, Christ Church & Trinity Church
B1790-1801 1829-

C 3021-~3022 All Saints, Christ Church & Trinity
Church M1790-1801 1814-82

Reel C 3026 Annapolis BMD 1747 1774-1874 1884

(51

C 3021 Annapolis St. Luke's Anglican B 1782-1817 1833-88

M1782-94 1807-17 D1808-17




National Archives of Canada

Report of National Archives of Canada, National Library
Ottawa year book 1873 (p. 156-7) BK 1881 (p. 31, 33)
1883 (p. 39, 40, 41, 32, 26, 27, 38)

Report of National Archives B1883 October 8, 1710 Roll
of Families (p. 124)

Land Deed Index on film P.A.N.S. (for Nova Scotia and
New Brunswick)

"A Service of British Regiments in Canada and North
America" at Ottawa National Archives

MG 21 Sloane MSS 3607 (v)

Publication of Canadian Archives for years 1889, 1888
(p. 565, 752, 746, 748) 1891 (p. 2, 7) 1890Q Qll p. 66,
313 Ql13, p. 105-106, 1905 vol. 2 VI

P.A.N.S.

Currencyv, Exchange and Finance in Nova Scotia (p. 45)
for 1712 pay list at Annapolis Royal

Fort Anne Papers Reels 1 and 2
"Frontier Missionary' by Rev. Jacob Bailey (1780~1808)
1714 census of Port Royal

Notes of Nova Scotia census 1767 Nova Scotia Historical
Society Collections vol. 7, p. 45 971.71 B2n

Report of P.A.N.S. for 1934 Appendix B - settlement of
soldiers B1021 p. 43 (1713)

P.A.N.S. or N.S.H.S. Vol. 27 (Crown Grants at Annapolis
1730-49

RG46 folder 6 #1 - Box #2 - Oath of Allegiance at Annapolis
Royval in 1727 by English inhabitants.

Public Archives of Nova Scotia at Dalhousie University
for land grants at Horton Nova Scotia to people from
Connecticut and Rhode Island

Public Archives of Nova Scotia II and III edited by A.
MacMechan volumes 7% and 13




Archives N.S. P.A.N.S.

Granville

"The Habitation" - pamphlet MG 100 vol. 3 #5
Consecretion of Christ Church MG 1 Vol. 480 (manuscripts})

P.A.N.S. = RG1l vol. 221 documents 13 and SO (land applica-
tions above Granville).

History of Granville MGL vol. 1299 #2 and 4 {(manuscript).

History of 0ld Granville MGl00 vol. 147 #23-24 {(manu—
Seript) «

MGl vol. 1788 F2 Land Grants of Granville 1759-63.

List of Babies (Granville mid-wife) MCl00 vol. 46 #6

{53

Microfilm (listed under "places") Annapolis Royal, Granville

etc. reels 3 and 4 township books of Granville and
Annapolis Royal - under micro - "places" Granville
originals P.A.N.S. MG4 #185 and MG4 #34 (folder) - typed

copy
Places - "Granville" bapt. 1790-1800 verticle MSS file

History of 0ld Granville by Ed. Fraser Neville (and road
plan) P.A.N.S. verticle MS file Granville, Ann. County).

Land Grants. +Verticle MS file in folder marked Granville
Township

List of stones in Parker and Gilliatt cemetery MG 100
vol. 143 #36 p. 18 (manuscript).

History of Granville Ferrvy MG 100 vol. 147 #25 {manu-
sEript] .

Photocopies of History of Granville (25 pages) P.A.N.S.
verticle MSS file Granville Ferry Hist. (manuscrip:).

Census listing 1772 MG 100 vol. 147 # 28 (manuscript)
List of grantees 1764 MG 100 vol. 147 %26 (manuscript)

Land Grants 1765 P.A.N.5. verticle MSS file Granville
Ferry (Ann Co.) manuscript




List of settlers 1759, 1762, 1763 MG 100 vol. 147 #27
manuscript

Micro, Granville Township - Township BK (with Windsor,
Newport Bks) 1728-1881 details under microfilm folder
under "Places" Windsor. P.A.N.S. micro cabinet reel 3.

Annapolis County Cemeteries - 3 reels
N.S.H.8. - reels (1731-1759) and vol. 1 vear 1731-59
(index) surname petitions landgrants.

Report on Canadian Archives 1884-1889 B series - Canadians

in America. 1890-1892 @ series Rev.

P.A.N.S. The T.B. Smith Collection - Queen County manu-

script MGl series 836 manuscript - a few N.S5. and N.B.
people.




P.A.N.S.

Dighy

P.A.N.5. Micro Cabinet under "Miscellaneous "C" for
census.

P.A.N.S. verticle MSS file Digby Churches Trinity (manu-
script)

Bishop Inglis Journal for September 9, 10, 11, 1791
MCl vol. 480 (manuscript)

Scrapbook of Churches of Nova Scotia vol. 1 p. 234 or MG9
vol. 46, p. 234

Micro cabinet under Churches Digby Trinity 1809-1950 -
records

Petition for creation of Church 1785 Mg 100 vol. 135 # 2
{(manuscript)

Digby land grants tracing of 1801 grant P,A.N.S, verticle
MSS file Digby (manuscript)

Digby militia P.A.N.S. microfilm under "places" Nova Scotia
militia

Petition (Digby Town Plot) P.A.N.S. RGl vol. 229 doc. 96,
97, 98, 99-109

Annapolis Township Bk MG4 vol. 5 Reel L
Granville Township Bk MG4 #185 (1779-1933)

"Some Chapters in the History of Digby County and Its
Early Settlers" by Alan M. Hill

Clements Township its History and its People 1783-1870
by Sutherland I.M. Acadia thesis 190 PR ALEJST

A History of Colchester Co. from Earliest Times to 1835
(Acadia thesis 188 pp. 1954 by A.M. Hamilton

Nova Scotia Nobility wvol, 2 p. 210-249 by Thomas C. Banks
film 845140

Crowell's Scrapbook of New Englanders in Nova Scotia
MG9 no. 109




Digby County Registry Office (at Weymouth Nova Scotia)
BK38 p. 102

Weekend Magazine of Toronto Telegram, October 9, 1954
"The Credit Shall be Yours".

Year Book 1897 by "Society of Colonial Wars in Common-=
wealth of Mass" p. 81-126

Deed of Sale (by Captain John Hamilton) 1765 P.A.N.S.
Box 5 under "miscellaneous”

R.G. 20 Series C vol. 85 #230 (1732-38) grants from
A.R. records

Department of Lands and Forests (Crown Lands Department)
3rd floor 1740 Granville Street, Halifax, Nova Scotia

P.A.N.S. publication #4 "Loyalists and Land Settlement in
Nova Scotia"
R.G. 22 - militia Clare and Digby (1814-46)
vol. 376 - muster rolls of Loyalists (1784) and
military settlers in Annapolis Royal and Digby

R.G. 32 - marriage bonds for 1763-1864 (approx.)
micro. by groom's name.

Wills and deeds at P.A.N.S. See "Biography file" and
"Community file" indexed on cards. See Church's maps
- every house 19th Century. Digby Township Grantees
1800 -~ verticle M.S. file




0ld Cobequid and Its Destruction by F.H. Patterson
N.S5.H.S. XXIII

"Smith's Cove and Her Neighbours" by Hazel M. Clayton

A General History of Long Island (North Grand Passage)
by Eagles D.E.

New Century Cyclopaedia of Names Vol. 7

Planters and Pioneers: Nova Scotia 1749 to 1775 by
Ethel C. Wright

Settlements and Churches in Nova Scotia L4 9=17%6 b T,
MacKinnon

History of Freeport Nova Scotia 1784-1934 by Greenwood W.R.

"Scrapbook" Digby Town and Municipality 1st 1988 2nd 1973

157




Military

"British Officers in America 1754-74" by W.C. Ford 1894
F 831-311

British Officers in American Revolution by W.C. Ford 1897
F 8329-309

Massachusettes soldiers and officers from 1723-1763
"George I's Army 1714-27" by Charles Dalton (2 vol.}

"Complete and Correct list of Army ...." published by
John Bell, London 1782

Year Bk 1897 of Society of Col. Wars in Commonwealth of
Massachusettes p. 98-101 (muster rolls) 103-104 (officers)
113-117 (men in fort 1710-11) 81, 95-97

N.S.H.S. Vol. 4 pp. 31, 39, 40-46 (Mohawk fort file)
In England - Dalton's Commission Bk 1702-1707
Dalton's Commission Bk 1714-1727 (George I arnmy)

The Militia of Nova Scotia 1749-1867 by Joseph Plimsoll
Edwards

"Canadian Participants in the American Revolution” in
"LList in Canada" - many volumes of this general publica-
tion written by Dr. Virginia Easley de Marce, Assistant
Professor of History, George Mason University, 1967,
Standford University

The Neutral Yankees of Nova Scotia by J.B. Brebner.

Index to Rev. War Pension Application by National Gen.
Society

"Loyalist Names in Academic Theses and Dissertations™
"lost in Canada"” vol. 5 #33, August 1979

D.A.R. Patriot Index

National Library (Ottawa) C-9125 vol. 44 list of
immigrants 1748-49 p. 1-57

W.0. 1 treasury C 15642 vol. 127 no. 25 (year 1710)

petition of 4 New York companies re pay. Vol. 131,

no 13 (1710-1711) -~ establishment of officers for Nicholson's
expedition, vol. 135, no. 8 (1711) soldiers drafted, vol.

141 no. 19 (1711) i pay for officers on Hall expedition,




Vol. 144 (1712} no. 2 - 3 regiments from Canada, vol. 145
no. 32 (1712) establishment of 4 companies at Annapolis
Roval,

W.0. 1 C15642 vol. 154 #66 (1712) Establishment of 4
Newfoundland companies, vol. 156 #10 (1712) Marine
regiments.

New England for 1709-1710 (soldiers to Nova Scotia (ex-
clusive of officers) 3250 from Massachusettes, 304 officers
and men from New Hampshire and 516 from Connecticut.

"The 40th Regiment" by Harry Piers

"Historical Records of the 40th Regiment" by Smythies

"Commission Books" by Dalton - hundreds in Kew Gardens
P.R.0., London, England

"Early State Papers" (military) Chancery Lane, London,
England

Year Book 1897 by "Society of Colonial Wars in Common-
wealth of Massachusettes" British Army lists serving at
Ft. Anne.

Roster of Revolution Soldiers in Georgia

The Journal of Col. John Winslow

Massachusettes officers in Prench and Indian Wars by
Nancy S. Voye, NEH & GR vol. 48 & 49

(57
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U.S.A.

"Immigrants to New England (1700-1775)" by Ethel Stanwood
Bolton

"Ye Descendants of one Thomas Hamilton" by Mary E.
Hamilton (Redlands, California, 1911) 15 p 16 mo. at
Ft. Wayne, Indiana in "Newberry Library of Congress"

Americans of Gentle Birth by Mrs. H.D. Pellman VI 1903
E69.69

History of Cape Cod (Freeman F.) 1869 F 84405.3 (see
index)

Loyalists in American Revolution" (by L. Sabine 1864)
K4832.77

"Rhode Island and Connecticut Emmigration to Nova Scotia"
by R.G. Huling

“Gen. Dictionary of the First Settlers of New England"
before 1692, 4 vol. 2492 p. by James Savage, Boston
(1860-62)

"The Pioneers of Massachusettes" by Charles Henry Pape
(Boston 1900)

"Gen. Dictionary of Maine and New Hampshire" by Sybil
Noyes, Charles T. Libby, and Walter G. Davis, 795 p.
Portland, Maine 1928-39

The Gen. Dictionary of Rhode Island (before 1690 - 485
settlers by J. Osborne Austin, Albany, New York.

"Topographical Dictionary by New England Emigrants 1620-
1650" by C.E. Banks 332 p.

Original Lists of Persons of guality, emigrants, exiles,
rebels, etc. 1600-1700 from M.S.S. in State Paper Depart-
ment of Her Majesty's Public Record Office edited by
John Camden Hotten (London, England 1874) 612 p.

"Immigrants to the Middle Colonies" by Tepper

"Gen. Register of First Settlers of New England" by
Farmer




Collection (on Hamilton 1666 on) - by Dr. B.L. Noves.

"Maine Surname Index" in State Library at Augusta, Maine,
04333

N.E.G. & H.R. vol. 48 and 49
"Passamacuaddy" by Bauto Martha Ford

"A Gen- Dictionary of first New England Settlers"
Savage, James 1784-1873

The Pioneers of Massachusettes by Pope, C.H. (1841-1918)

Topographical Dictionary of 2885 English emigrants to
New England (1620-1650)

Directory of Ancient head of New England Families,
Holme, F.R. by Banks, C.E.

History of Montana by Hamilton, J.McL.
History of Chatham Massachusettes (Hyannis and Harwick,
Massachusettes) 1913-47 by Wm. C. Smith 4 volumes - list

of men to Nova Scotia

Chatham Massachusettes Vital Records "Mayflower Descendant"
oy 4y S e O D2 18 18 U6: L% 18 24, 3,

Connecticut Settlement of Nova Scotia prior to the
Revolution" by Jean Stephenson (C51.N21)

Index of Genealogies in the Library of Congress (Washing-
E6na DaCal

Early Settlers of Maryland by F. Skordas

Border Town Cemeteries of Massachusettes - compiled by
Charles D. and Edna W. Townsend.

Mayflower Planters at Plymouth Massachusettes 1620 by
Leon Clark Hill

Gen. Dictionary of Rhode Island by Austin
Early Connecticut Marriages by Bailey
American Ancestry by Munsell vol. XI

Scottish Emigrants to the U.S.A. by

161




"History of N. Brookfield 1647-1887" by Temple

Vital Statistics of Brookfield, Massachusettes
New England Biographical Sketches by Sabine
New York Marriages (prior to 1784)

N.E.H. & G.S. publications, October 1950, p. 310-311,
October 1901, p. 94, April 1944, p. 179-80

The Hamiltons of North Yarmouth, Maine by Miss Emily
Wilder Leavitt of Boston

Gen. Dictionary of Maine and New Hampshire by Noyer
Gen. 929 N958

Immigrants to New England 1700-1775 by Ethel Stanwood Bolton
Pennsylvania Genealogy p. 315-

Immigration of the Irish Quakers into Pennsylvania 1682-
1750 by Myers p. 174

History of Cape Cod (to 1775) by Kittridge
Biographical Sketches by C.H. Boulay ‘

Quakers in Colonial New England by Worral

Marriages and Deaths from the Maryland Gazette
Maryland Marriages 1634-1777 by Robert Barnes
Scotch-Irish Pioneers by Bolton

Maryland Revolutionary Records by Newman

"Kittery" by Stackpole

Early Massachusettes Marriages prior to 1800 by Mays

The American Loyalist by Lorenzo Sabine

Original lists of Emigrants in Bondage from London to
American Colonies 1719~-1744 by Marion Kaminkow

Port Arrivals and Immigrants to the city of Boston 1715-
1716 and 1762-1769

Encylopaedia of American Quaker Gen. by Hinshaw

"Sons of the Conqueror" by Pine
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addenda

p.24 — Since this book was compiled [ have found a late eighteen
hurndred fAlbicn Co. Atlas with pictures of the husband, homestead,
store, and town house of Farmy Hamilton (Francis Gore Hamilton4).
She and Wm. Ellictt had fowr children: Dr. Johm H Elliott of  Fort
Erie who died in 18715 a daughter (eldest) marm-ied Wm FBeattie
domiciled in Durham County; ancther daughter married James M
Bussel of Trafalpar; and Wm. Elliott Jr. who resided on  the mld
homestead with his family.

p. 38a — Picture ideritificatiore of Thompsons of the town of York in
1863:

~ picture 1 - (back vow) Christupher Jos. Thompson  and
Jessie (McCallw) his wifey; - (middle row) Clara Jessie and
Christaopher Wmi ~ (front row) Gecrgina F (late Mrs. H. C. Hamilton3)
and Jos Farkins, father of Audrey Thompson {Robinson) nof  Toronto,

identifier of these pictures.

- picture & - Christopher Wm and Clara Jessie Thompson
(resembles Leslie Hamiltond)

- picture 3 - ? resembles Robert Hamilton8.
-~ picture 4 — same children as picture 1.
— picture 5 =~ Jos P. Thonpson.

p.4E - Mrs. Rebinson says that H.C.Hamilton and Family lived at 23
Admiral Road when Bob attended U.C.C. but moved to 30 Albany Rmad
during WW 1 to be close to Gemrpgie’s Mother who lived at 178
Albany Rd. After the war, and after Frank Thompson's wife died,
they went to Frank’s home at 47 Wells St. to help him rear his
daughters Madeleine and Helen (1918-1325). The city directory says
that inm 1925 their address was on Don Mount. The family summered
at Edgelake in Ora Ont. with several cottages grouped to-gether on
Lake Simcoe. They owned the land from the CNR tracks between one
concession and another (Concession 5 & & ?).

p. 163 & 164 — A descendent of Lizzie Hamiltond and John  Bdams of
Toraontas, a Mrs.Audrey (Adams) NMeddletor has described the Lount
cormmectinn. hizzie Hamilton®s Mother Ann Coulthard had a sister
who married Ed Lount (brather of Samuel) and thereby their
daughter Olive was the cousin of H.S.Hamilton on his Mother's
side. I rnow believe the signatures on p. 163 to be those of Arnr
Coulthard Hamilton (wife of Sidney Smith Hamiltorn4) and bher sister
Mrs. Ed Lount.

It is possible that A Coulthard could have been  the
daughter of George Coulthard  who along with Thosd Hamilton
testified against the Family Compact at the trials about the
destruction of Wm. Lyon McKenzie’s press and property.
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